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Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited (and its subsidiaries,
collectively referred to as “C&T” or the “Group”) is a leading Information
Technology (“IT") software and services provider in the region involved
in the design, development, delivery and operations of total IT solutions
that meet customers’ business requirements.

Founded in 1991, C&T has been publicly listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (Stock Code: SEHK 00046) since 1998.
The Group’s headquarters are based in Hong Kong with offices as well as
research and service centers established in Beijing, Shanghai, Nanjing
and Shenzhen.

The Group has been building its business on a vision to deliver
competitive advantages for enterprises and government organizations
to progress by optimizing their information systems efficiency. Over the
decades, C&T has a long-standing track record in delivering award-
winning, large-scale IT solutions for numerous prestigious corporations
and government organizations.

Building on its competence in applying advanced IT technologies
and proven track records, C&T is providing all round IT solutions
and services comprising systems and network integration services,
application development and support services, enterprise application
software, operation and business process outsourcing services as well as
online e-Government and e-Business services.
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Corporate Information (continued)
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Financial Highlights

EHE

For the year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
—EEN\F ZETNF 2-TF T——F ZEB-—=-F
HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BHEETT AEBT BEBT BEBT BEBT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&) (&) (&%) (&)
Revenue from continuing  #EL L E KA
operations 376.4 400.0 338.9 391.2 206.7
Profit for the year REZHF 325 45.0 50.2 51.0 47.0
HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents
AL il B Bl AL
Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) &% 2= 2K 22 7| 12.89 18.17 20.33 20.88 19.50
Dividends per share (“DPS”) &%A% & 8.00 10.00 12.00 13.00 15.00
Revenue from continuing operations Profit for the year EPS vs DPS
BFEREEBRBA EEERF BERERBIEERRE
HK$M HK$M HK Cent EPS DPS
AEET HEBET el B swmeszn  sEme
400 p— 65 22
- 60 20
350 — — 55

30— I — | —  —

2% — H— H

200 — |— =  —

so— H

100 — — [ [—

50

35

2008 2009 2010

2011

45 ———
A—
30 — — -

25 — -

20 — — |

2012

2008 2009

2010 2011

2012

R 2R

2008

2009 2010 2011 2012

BEBR AT B FER

5



6

Chairman’s Statement

ERRE

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Dear Shareholders,

OVERVIEW

| am pleased to present the annual results of Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012.

As alerted in the earlier announcement, the Group reported a decrease
in consolidated net profit attributable to shareholders by 7.8% to
HK$47.0 million (2011: HK$51.0 million, as restated). The basic
earnings per share, after taken into account of the repurchase of
752,000 shares during the year, was 19.50 HK cents (2011: 20.88
HK cents, as restated) or a decrease of 6.6% compared with the same
period last year.

The declines were primarily attributable to the significant decrease in
revenue from reselling of third parties hardware products in the Group'’s
system Integration? business due to the ongoing business transformation
and the reduction in foreign exchange gain recognised during the
reporting period. On the other hand, the increase in profit contribution
from the Group’s Application Services? business, increase in interest
income and the appreciations in the Group’s financial assets held had
partially compensated the net profit decline.

Despite the less than satisfactory operating results, the Group continued
to generate positive cash inflow from its operating activities and
maintained robust liquidity position with approximately HK$335 million
net cash on hand (including pledged bank deposits) as at the end of
2012.

In view of the sustained healthy financial position, the Board
recommended the distribution of a final dividend of 6 HK cents (2011:
7 HK cents). As to celebrate the Group approaching the 15th public
listing anniversary, the Board also recommended the distribution of
a special dividend of 3 HK cents (2011: Nil). Including the interim
dividend of 6 HK cents (2011: 6 HK cents), the total dividends per share
for 2012 amounted to 15 HK cents, which represents 15.4% increase
over the previous year (2011: 13 HK cents).
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFE®/E (H)

BUSINESS REVIEW

As part of the long term business strategy, the Group is transforming its
system Integration! business in Mainland China from a hardware driven
business to a service and solutions driven business. Such transformation
has resulted in an overall gross profit margin improvement to 45.3%
from 27.4% last year, though at the same time caused a material drop in
consolidated revenue of 47.2% and the overall gross profit dropped by
12.5%.

As part of the transformation to improve the service revenue from its
Integration business in Mainland China, the Group has been targeting
sizable multi-national corporations with quality I.T. services demand.
During the reporting period, the Group managed to secure a multi-
year contract to provide network support services to all the branches
of a renowned multi-national bank with over 90 branches in China and
another one-off service contract to relocate the bank’s headquarters in
the southern region of China. The management believe that more efforts
is required to strengthen the transformation effort in order to further
improve its software and service revenues from Mainland China in long
term.

The Group’s Solutions Services? business continued to benefit from its
long term services contracts with the HKSAR Government and several
large corporations in Hong Kong. During the reporting period, the Group
successfully renewed a multi-year service agreement with a major utility
company and awarded a new multi-year service agreement with a
transportation authority in Hong Kong. In order to strengthen its income
from long term services, the Group is actively participating in a number
of tenders for IT services in both public and commercial sectors in Hong
Kong. In addition, the Group is also developing services offering based
on new technologies in the area of Cloud® computing and mobility.

On top of the increasing recurring maintenance and services income
generated from its existing customer base, the Group’s Application
Services?® business continued to secure new customers and contracts
for its HRM3 and ETPS? product suites during the reporting year. The
Group is putting increasing effort in developing additional functions
and features on its products suites as well as expanding its software
products line. The management is optimistic that the Group will continue
to generate stable income from the order backlog carried forward and
enlarging customer base of its HRMS and ETPS products. With the
increasing need for the better corporate governance for companies in
the region, the management sees a continuous growth in demand for
the Group’s enlarged software product offerings in the coming years.

The profit contribution of the Group’s BPO* and GETS® business was
stably maintained during the reporting period. The GETS business had
been affected by lackluster growth in import and export trading activities
in Hong Kong and also faced severe competition from other operators.
To meet the challenges, the management has actively pursued new
services to broaden the revenue streams and has continued to enhance
cost-effectiveness to better position the business amidst the competition.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

ETFE®HE (H)

Contributed mainly by rental and dividend incomes and with the
appreciation of the financial assets and investment properties held, the
Group's investments segment recorded a segment result of HK$24.6
million (2011: HK$14.7 million). The improved result is mainly attributed
to the gain in fair value of the financial assets held. The management is
optimistic that this segment will continue generating stable rental income
from investment properties held and dividend and interest incomes from
financial assets held but takes a prudent view on their short term price
fluctuations.

PROSPECT

The global economy is foreseen to be in a slower-than-expected recovery
and also the pace of China’s economic growth may continue to slow
down. Looking ahead, the Group will continue to focus its attention
on the risk management to withstand the rapid changes in economic
environment. Leveraging the strong recurring revenue streams generated
from its Solutions Services business and Applications Services business
and the robust financial position, the management is actively pursuing
new business initiatives to enlarge its software and services offering in
order to maximise the shareholders’ value.

Footnotes:

1 The Group’s Integration business covers the provision of IT systems and network
infrastructure with related design, implementation and on-going support services.

2 The Group’s Selution Services business includes (i) Development Services for the
provision of IT solutions implementation and application software development; and
(i) Managed Services for the provision of IT and related operation/infrastructure
outsourcing services.

3 The Group’s Application Services business engages in the provision of business
application solutions and e-business services for enterprises including (i) the
provision of application software with implementation and ongoing support services
for human resource management (“HRM”) and related workflow processes and
payroll outsourcing services; (ii) e-procurement, e-tendering and related application
software services, and the document and workflow management solutions (“ETPS”);
(iii) business process outsourcing (“BP0”) services and (iv) the Government Electronic
Trading Services (“GETS”), cloud and other related value added services.

4 The Group’s BP0 business comprises the provision of services for the operations and
support of specific business functions or processes of customers.

5 Since 2004, the Group has been granted a license (the “GETS License”) from the
HKSAR Government for the provision of front-end GETS for processing certain
official trade-related documents. The Group’s GETS license was renewed in 2009 for
operation of additional 7 years until the end of 2016.

6 Cloud computing is the delivery of computing and storage capacity as a service to a
community of end-recipients through Internet.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFE®/E (H)

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The overall revenue decreased by 47.2% to HK$206.7 million (2011:
HK$391.2 million) when compared with last financial year. The
decline was mainly attributable to the significant decrease in revenue
contributed by the Group’s Integration business as the division is in its
course of business transformation as previously reported. Accordingly,
the Integration and Solutions Services segment recorded a less than
satisfactory segment result during the financial year.

Gross profit

The Group's gross profit for the year was HK$93.6 million, representing
a decrease of 12.5% as compared with the amount of HK$107.0 million
last year. Nevertheless, the Group’s overall gross profit margin improved
significantly to 45.3% (2011: 27.4%). The increment were the combined
results of the increasing contributions from higher margin Application
Services and the decreased sales in third party hardware products that
the margin are generally low.

Other income and gains, net (including fair value gains/losses)

Other income and gains, net including the fair value gains or losses,
recorded an increase of 18.2% to HK$32.6 million (2011: HK$27.5
million). The increase was primarily due to the effects of the followings.

a. HK$16.6 million, or an increase of 83.2% in fair value gain on
investment properties (2011: HK$9.1 million) due to appreciation
in their market values;

b. HK$9.2 million, or an increase of 42.0% in bank interest income
(2011: HK$6.5 million) as the Group had enlarged the size and
extended the tenor of the deposits to enhance the interest yield;

C. HK$4.7 million generated from the net realised and unrealised
gain on Hong Kong listed equity and debt securities investments
(2011: loss of HK$5.6 million) mainly due to the rebound in stock
price in 2012;

d.  HK$0.8 million, or a decrease of 92.0% in foreign exchange gain
(2011: HK$9.7 million) as the RMB against HKD become static
during the year; and

e. A non-recurring gain of HK$6.9 million on disposal of properties
held by the Group in 2011.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

ETFE®HE (H)

Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses slightly decreased by 8.4% to HK$30.3
million (2011: HK$33.1 million). The decrease was mainly attributable to
the decrease in sales expenses incurred by the Integration business.

General and administrative expenses experienced minor increased
by 0.5% to HK$44.6 million (2011: HK$44 .4 million) resulting from
tightened cost controls.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense decreased from HK$5.5 million (as restated) last
year to HK$4.1 million this year. The decrease was primarily attributable
to the reversal of tax overprovision carried forward from previous years.
The tax charge at the Group’s effective tax rate was around 8.0% in
2012, comparing with 9.8% in 2011. The effective tax rate was lower
than the Hong Kong statutory profits tax rate as part of the incomes and
gains, including bank interest income generated in Hong Kong and fair
value gain arising from the revaluation of investment properties located
in Hong Kong, were not subject to Hong Kong profits tax.

Net profit

Profit for the year attributable to shareholders decreased 7.8% to
HK$47.0 million (2011: HK$51.0 million, as restated) while the net
profit margin (profit for the year attributable to shareholders divided by
revenue) was increased to 22.7% from 13.0% (as restated) in last year.
The increase in net profit margin was in line with the increase in gross
profit margin and other income and gains as mentioned.

Non-Current Assets

The Group’s non-current assets as at 31 December 2012 increased
to HK$89.9 million from HK$67.6 million as at 31 December 2011.
The increase was primarily due to the appreciation in market value of
investment properties held.

Impairment testing of goodwill

The Group assessed the carrying amounts of goodwill as at year end and
noted no impairment indication. The valuation methodology, together
with the basis, and assumptions used, are consistent with last year and
disclosed in note 16 to the financial statements.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFE®/E (H)

Current Assets

The Group’s current assets as at 31 December 2012 decreased to
HK$404.1 million from HK$456.4 million as at 31 December 2011. The
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in trade receivables as a result
of significant decrease in the Integration business activities.

Trade receivables

The Group maintains strict control over its outstanding trade receivables
and overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In
view of past repayment history of customers and subsequent settlement
records, the Board considered that the trade receivables, net of the
provision for impairment of trade receivables, were not impaired and
recoverable.

Current Liabilities

The Group’s current liabilities as at 31 December 2012 decreased to
HK$92.8 million from HK$136.9 million as at 31 December 2011. The
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in the Integration business
related trade payables and the full repayment of bank borrowings during
the year.

Segment Assets and Liabilities

Both segment assets and liabilities of the Integration and Solutions
Services business decreased in respect of significant reduction in
Integration business activities.

Both segment assets and liabilities of the Application Services business
remained approximate the same as last year in view of its stable business
activities.

The Investments segment’s assets as at 31 December 2012 increased
to HK$79.5 million from HK$60.1 million as at 31 December 2011.
The increase was mainly a result of the appreciation in market value
of financial assets and investment properties held. As at 31 December
2012, the Investments segment of the Group mainly comprised (i)
investment properties located in Hong Kong, Guangzhou and Nanjing for
rental purpose and (ii) listed debt and equity securities in Hong Kong.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

ETFE®HE (H)

Equity

During the year, the Group repurchased approximately 0.75 million
shares at an average price of HK$1.68 per share. Total equity as at 31
December 2012 rose by 3.6% to HK$400.2 million from HK$386.2
million (as restated) as at 31 December 2011. The change was mainly
a result of the retention of the net profit earned in 2012, partially offset
by the reclassification of 2011 final dividend to current liability upon the
approval of the dividend at the annual general meeting held in May 2012
and the declaration of interim dividend in August 2012.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had pledged an investment
property with a carrying value of HK$42.8 million (2011: HK$26.8
million), listed debt and equity securities of HK$22.6 million and bank
balances of HK$60.1 million (2011: HK$31.8 million) to secure certain
general bank facilities including interest-bearing borrowings, guarantee/
performance bonds facilities granted to the Group in aggregate of
HK$128.6 million (2011: HK$113.7 million) of which HK$5.4 million
(2011: HK$27.8 million) had been utilized as of 31 December 2012.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Group maintains a prudent treasury management policy and is in a
strong liquidity position for its daily operations and future development
demands.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s bank balances and cash (excluded
pledged bank deposits of HK$60.1 million) was HK$274.8 million (2011:
HK$311.8 million).

All of the Group’s on hand fundings are in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and US dollars. Save as disclosed in note 27 to the report, the Group
has not adopted any hedging policies, as these currencies carry low
exchange fluctuation risks.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no bank borrowings (2011:
HK$22.5 million). The Group’s current ratio representing current assets
divided by current liabilities was 4.4 (2011: 3.3) and the gearing ratio,
representing total liabilities divided by total assets, was 19.0% (2011:
26.3%, as restated).
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFE®/E (H)

REMUNERATION POLICY AND NUMBERS OF EMPLOYEES

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
working experience and prevailing market conditions.

The remuneration policies adopted for the year ended 31 December
2012 are consistent with those disclosed in the Group’s 2011 Annual
Report. As at 31 December 2012, the Group employed approximately
284 full time employees and 2 contract-based employees.

As at 31 December 2012, the Company operates a share option scheme
and a share award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to the employees who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group has no significant investments
held as at 31 December 2012.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries during the year.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL
ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets as
at 31 December 2012.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in note 35 to the report, the Group has no material
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2012.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

ETFE®HE (H)

DIVIDEND AND BOOK CLOSE

The Board has recommended final and special dividends of HK9
cents (2011: HK7 cents) per ordinary share payable to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
29 May 2013. The Register of Members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 20 May 2013 to Wednesday, 22 May 2013 (both days
inclusive) for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement
to attend and vote at the AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and
vote at the AGM to be held on Wednesday, 22 May 2013, all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be
lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars, Tricor Tengis Limited,
at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 16 May
2013. In addition, the Register of Members of the Company will be
closed from Tuesday, 28 May 2013 to Wednesday, 29 May 2013 (both
days inclusive) for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement
to the proposed final and special dividends. In order to qualify for the
proposed final and special dividends, all transfers, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s Share
Registrars, Tricor Tengis Limited, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Monday, 27 May 2013. During such periods, no share transfer will
be effected.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REVIEW

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management of the
Company the Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December
2012, including the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board and the management, | would like to express our
sincere thanks to all employees, shareholders, customers and business
partners for their supports to the Group during the reporting period.

Ng Cheung Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2013
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Directors and Senior Management
EENSHNEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ir. Ng Cheung Shing, aged 51, the founder and Chairman, is responsible
for the corporate strategies and business development of the Group. Ir.
Ng graduated with a Bachelor of Science Degree in Computer Science
from the University of Manchester in the United Kingdom in 1984 and
has over 25 years of experience in IT industry. Before establishing the
Company, Ir. Ng held executive positions in companies such as Hewlett-
Packard Asia Pacific Ltd. and Sun Hung Kai (China) Ltd. Ir. Ng is the
Honorary Fellow of Vocational Training Council and The Professional
Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries and a fellow of the Hong
Kong Computer Society and Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. He is a
Founding Chairman of the Hong Kong Information and Software Industry
Association, Chairman of the Advisory Committee for the Department of
Electronic Engineering of the City University of Hong Kong and Member
of the Advisory Committee for the Department of Computer Science
of the University of Hong Kong and the Department of Computing of
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Ir. Ng was also the awardees of
“Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong” and the “Ten Outstanding
Young Persons Award of Hong Kong” and “Directors of the Year
Awards”.

Mr. Yan King Shun, aged 51, the Group’s Chief Executive Officer, is
responsible for overall operations of the Group. Mr. Yan has over 25
years of experience in the IT industry and is a fellow of the Hong Kong
Computer Society. Before joining the Group in 2000, Mr. Yan was
the Chief Operating Officer of Tradelink Electronic Commerce Ltd.
He also held senior management positions in large IT and electronic
services companies including Accenture. Mr. Yan graduated from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor's Degree in Business
Administration in 1985 and received executive education for global
leadership from the Harvard Business School in 1998.

Mr. Leung King San, Sunny, aged 51, is responsible for finance and
administration strategies of the Group. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Leung has over 25 years of experience in
finance, administration and planning in the IT industry. Before joining
the Group, Mr. Leung held senior management positions in IBM and
its associated company in Asia Pacific. Mr. Leung graduated from the
Simon Fraser University in Canada with a Bachelor’s Degree in Business
Administration in 1983.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
EEREREEER)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ha Shu Tong, aged 64, joined the Board in 1998. Mr. Ha has
involved in the financial industry for over 40 years and has substantial
experience in corporate finance and corporate development. Mr. Ha is
an executive director and Chief Executive Officer of Value Convergence
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 821).

Professor Matthew K. 0. Lee, Ph.D., aged 53, joined the Board in 1998.
Professor Lee is Chair Professor of Information Systems and E-Commerce
at the College of Business of the City University of Hong Kong (the
“University”) and Director of Communication and Public Relations at
the University. Professor Lee is also the Founding Director of the DBA
Programme at the University. He holds a number of university degrees
including BEng (1st Class Honours) in Electronic Engineering, MSc in
Software Engineering, Ph.D. in Computer Science, MBA, LLB, and LLM
in Corporate and Commercial Law. He is a graduate of the Internet Law
Summer Program at Harvard Law School. Professor Lee has substantial
experience and published widely in leading research journals. He is a
professional member of British Computer Society, a Chartered Engineer
(UK Engineering Council) and a Barrister-at-Law both in Hong Kong SAR
and England & Wales. Professor Lee was a Founding Vice-chairman of
the Hong Kong Computer Society e-Business Special Interest Group.
Professor Lee is a member of the Hong Kong Research Grant Council
(RGC) Business Studies Panels. He is an independent non-executive
director of World Wide Touch Technology (Holdings) Limited (Stock
Code: 1282).

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ACA,
CTA(HK), FHKIoD, aged 59, joined the Board in 2004. Mr. Ting is an
accountant in public practice as managing partner of Messrs. Ting Ho
Kwan & Chan, Certified Public Accountants since 1987. Mr. Ting is a
member of the 9th, 10th & 11th Chinese People Political & Consultative
Conference, Fujian. He is now a non-executive director of Chow Sang
Sang Holdings International Limited (Stock Code: 116) and holds
independent non-executive directorship in six other listed companies
namely, China SCE Property Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1966),
Dongyue Group Limited (Stock Code: 189), JLF Investment Company
Limited (Stock Code: 472), Texhong Textile Group Limited (Stock Code:
2678), Tong Ren Tang Technologies Company Limited (Stock Code:
1666) and Tongda Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 698).
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
EEREREEEHE)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lee Allen, aged 48, is in charge of overall technology development
as well as the e-Services and Application Products businesses of the
Group. Mr. Lee has more than 25 years of experience in IT business and
technical management. He has served the Group for about 10 years.
He graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor Degree
in Electrical and Electronic Engineering in 1987 and received a Master
Degree in Business Administration from the University of Hong Kong in
1996.

Mr. Ng Kwok Keung, aged 39, is the Financial Controller of the Group and
the Secretary of the Company. He has over 15 years of experience in
accounting, auditing, finance, and business advisory. Before joining the
Group, he was a financial controller of a Hong Kong listed company and
has worked as a manager of assurance and advisory business services
department of an international accounting firm. Mr. Ng graduated from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Arts Degree
in Accountancy and is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Yeung Sai Cheong, Steve, aged 47, is in charge of the sales and
marketing as well as other strategic development aspects of the Group.
Mr. Yeung joined the Group in 1998 and has more than 20 years of
IT experience in sales and business development. He graduated from
the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science Degree in
Computer Studies in 1988 and received a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in 1999.

BREEAE

FTEMAL 485 BEEEMZIEEREN
LRRAEEEFREBEMEAERERTIE -
FREREAMBREBLEMER T EHA
BMBSFRER  NAKERBIIOF » BN
—NNEFEXRNBEAR  HAEULET
TRBLEM - HERN NN FEFEKRE
MR IEERELTEM -

REMEE 395 SARE M BEEN

ARBZWE - REERGE - B MBR
REFATEBAISFLR - RIMALREER
Al REERBB B LHRRZHIFHEE
BEER-—REReFMmEEM B REE

E@E’JHEWE‘BFE] REENREBBTANBEE
El D+E'i'§'1l I/Ej%;/% H+Eﬂj;\/\$ﬂ¥'§

aJr b -

BHEXRE 475 BEAKEHEERE
AU REMRE TS HERRLE - HBEER
—NANFMAREE - REARHITERESR
B20FER  ETHEREHERRBML -5
TER—NNN\FEENBEAE - FHEM
B2 YR —NANANFREEBEREKE
ITHERELTEM -

MBERREERAT T —45%

17



18

Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the
principles of integrity, transparency and accountability. The board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate
governance is essential to the success of the Company and to the
enhancement of shareholders’ value.

The Board opined that the Company has complied with the code
provision set out in the Code of Corporate Governance Practices (effective
until 31 March 2012) and the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
code” effective from 1 April 2012) as stipulated in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) during the reporting year except on
the deviations noted below.

The CG code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Prior to 1 April 2012, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing (“Mr.
Ng”) held both positions. In order to reinforce its compliance to CG code
as provided in the Listing Rules to separate the responsibilities of the
chairman and chief executive officer by two individuals, with effect from
1 April 2012, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing relinquished his role as the chief
executive officer and remains as the chairman of the Group; and Mr. Yan
King Shun, who is currently an executive director, has been appointed as
the chief executive officer of the Group.

The CG code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
(“NED”) should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-
election. Prior to 1 April 2012, independent non-executive directors of
the Company (“INED") did not have a specific term of appointment but
are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the provisions of
the bye-laws of the Company. In order to reinforce its compliance to CG
code to appoint NED for a specific term, with effect from 1 April 2012, all
INEDs renewed their appointments with the Company for specific terms
of three years but are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the provisions of the bye-laws of the Company.

The Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken
to ensure that its corporate governance practices are similar to those
provided in the CG code.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
hEERBRE ()

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises three executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman)

Mr. Yan King Shun (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Leung King San, Sunny

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Ha Shu Tong

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

INEDs constitute more than one-third of the Board. The Company has
received from each INED a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers that all INEDs are independent. One of the three INEDs is
a professional accountant, which is in compliance with the requirement
of the Listing Rules.

One-third of the directors shall retire from office at every annual general
meeting and all directors (including non-executive directors) are subject
to retirement by rotation once every three year in accordance with the
Company’s bye-laws and the CG code. Retiring directors are eligible
for re-election at the annual general meeting at which they retire. Any
director appointed to fill a causal vacancy is subject to re-election at the
next annual general meeting of the Company. Separate resolutions are
proposed for the election of each director.

The directors’ biographical information is set out in the “Biographies
of Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 15 to 17. Two
executive directors, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing and Mr. Leung King San,
Sunny, are brother-in-law. Save as disclosed, there is no relationship
between each of the Board members.

The Board has the ultimate decision on the Group’s overall strategy,
annual budget, annual and interim results, appointment or retirement
of directors, significant contracts and transactions as well as other
significant policies and financial matters. The Board has delegated the
daily operations and administration to the Company’s management.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EEERRE ()

According to the division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) approved by the Board, the Chairman is
mainly responsible for long-term strategic development of the Group as
well as the operation of the Board, to make sure that the Board is run in
the best interests of the Group and all the Board meetings are effectively
planned and carried out. CEO mainly focuses on the business operations
of the Group, assists the Board to formulate strategies for the Group and
make sure they are implemented successfully. CEO is fully responsible
to the Board for overall operations of the Group.

Every director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials and has access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. In addition, every director has separate and independent
access to the Company’s senior management to facilitate them to
make informed decisions. All directors, in the discharge of their duties,
are allowed to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at a reasonable cost to be borne by the Company.

The Company has not established any committee responsible for the
corporate governance function of the Group and the function has
been collectively performed by the Board. The Board acknowledges
the overseeing of the corporate governance function by the Board
collectively.

During the year, the Board has reviewed and monitored the training
and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management. The Board has also reviewed and ensured compliance of
the relevant legal and regulatory requirements, the code of conducts, the
CG code and the disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors should participate in continuous professional development to
ensure their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities
under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Directors’ training is a continuing process. The Company updates
directors on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices. Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. In addition, with effect from 1 April 2012, all directors are
provided with monthly updates on the Group’s performance, position
and prospects to enable the board as a whole to discharge their duties.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

EEERRE (H)

During the year, all directors attended briefing sessions and/or
seminars and read seminar materials and updates relating to the
latest development of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements.

BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

In order to achieve a high standard of corporate governance, the Board
held at least four regularly meetings at approximately quarterly interval
to discuss the overall strategy as well as the operational matters and
financial performance of the Group. Attendance of each director at the
Board meetings is set out below:

R EREFHEHEHRS & HH
g WEMEMHSER LG EHRRRE
MEREERERNERZENESR -

ESEEBRHERR

REMRKEZLEER  EEERIETH
REMEZ BT R [TwAKEEER
BEAREERHENBERR - SEFHFEF
SERIEAFIIMT

Number of meetings
Attended/Eligible to attend

HEeE
RE TR E
Executive directors: BITES:
Mr. Ng Cheung Shing RRBLE 5/5
Mr. Yan King Shun TE2EEE 5/5
Mr. Leung King San, Sunny REFTE 5/5
Independent non-executive directors: BYFHITES
Mr. Ha Shu Tong BRI E 5/5
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew TR ZHIF 5/5
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRELE 5/5

BOARD COMMITTEES

To strengthen the functions of the Board, there are several Board
Committees namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Investment Committee formed under
the Board, with each performing different functions.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 24 April 1999 and during the
reporting period, the three independent non-executive directors, namely,
Mr. Ha Shu Tong, Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew, and Mr. Ting Leung
Huel, Stephen are the members of the committee and Mr. Ting was
elected as the chairman of Audit Committee.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

3

EREmE ()

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include:

to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation of dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor
to supply non-audit services;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with external auditor;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems;

to discuss the internal control system with management to ensure
that management has performed its duty to have an effective
internal control system;

to review the financial and accounting policies and practices of the
Group; and

to review the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s responses.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

BEVEZEGZIEBERSE

TE2REMNERBZRE  ENE

TRERAEFSRMEEZ - RitES
FEAZ BURM B0 57 B S B2 FRAGRAR - FBR IR AT

A1/ B % A BB B ok AR - AR B Y

e

REBERIRER S MESRINEZ B Z
BN R BN B ARAR R RORK

SRR AESMNS X BRED SR IR X BUIR TS 1 T
RHITHER

BEESRARFEIMNEZBEIRE 2T
BRK

ERARANBRERARAFRERE
RIEE  HEEWETFBM - TEY
S WA RSB AMNS R R E
KB

A AN DA AT EEAE - MERERIE KA
REERL

HEREN mABEERS  BRER
EBERBITHBERIBMMAIEIER
sl

BRAREMBREHBREER &

BRINEZHE G TEEEN(EXIS
SRR - ZBE G RCER - B
BIRE SERERGREIRERE 2R
BEAREREREFL ZOE -



Corporate Governance Report (continued)

EEERRE (H)

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice every year. Attendance of
each director at the meeting is set out below:

BERZEEBFERITRIMAEH
HEEEZBEREIIIT

BEE

Number of meetings
Attended/Eligible to attend

HESE
KB A R B
Executive director: HITES
Mr. Leung King San, Sunny R EFTE 2/2
Independent non-executive directors: BIUFHTES
Mr. Ha Shu Tong SRR E 2/2
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew TR L HIR 2/2
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRESRE 2/2

During the year, the Audit Committee, among other matters, reviewed
and provided supervision over the Group’s financial reporting processes
and internal controls, reviewed interim and annual results of the Group
and met with the external auditors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 22 September 2004
and comprises of three independent non-executive directors, namely,
Mr. Ha Shu Tong, Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew, and Mr. Ting Leung
Huel, Stephen and two executive Directors namely, Mr. Ng Cheung
Shing and Mr. Leung King San, Sunny. Mr. Ha is currently the chairman
of Remuneration Committee.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

° to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

° to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board'’s corporate goals and objectives;

° to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management
and the terms of their service contracts;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive directors;

° to consider and approve the grant of shares and share options
to eligible participants pursuant to the share award scheme and
share option scheme of the Company;
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o to review and approve compensation payable to executive directors o i@FI RHLERBMITEERSREIEAS

and senior management for any loss or termination of office or FEELSRRIEBGSRETMAEL N2
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms BE UERZSEERASNGER—
and is otherwise fair and not excessive; and B BEARBEASNBRR B BEITHR

NFRE - THIBE Rk

e to ensure that no director or any of its associates is involved in o  FERERZEBREA([ABHBEATTELR
deciding his own remunerations. HETHBED 25 -

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once every year. HMWEE€SEERIBIT—NEH  KES
Attendance of each director at the meeting is set out below: HE@Z ZIERE T -

Number of meetings
Attended/Eligible to attend

HESE
KRB A HERE
Executive directors: HITES .
Mr. Ng Cheung Shing RRBEA 2/2
Mr. Leung King San, Sunny REFGE 2/2
Independent non-executive directors: BYFEHITES :
Mr. Ha Shu Tong BRfREsE 2/2
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew TR LTHIR 2/2
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRIELLE 2/2

During the year, the work performed by the Remuneration Committee &R - HEZEE €172 TEA(HPBaE)H
includes, inter alia, the review of the Group’s remuneration policy for I AEBEZHITEE NS REIEEHMER X
its executive directors and senior management and approval of their — #EEH S 2 FHENAKE -

remunerations.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management EEZREREEEFHH

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG code, the remuneration of RIEMEEA~TEIEB.1HESTENIEX - HE
senior management by band for the year ended 31 December 2012 is Z—ZE——-F+_A=+—HIFESHREIEE
set out below: KE 2z EEE AT

Number of Individuals
AE

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7% 1,500,000/ 7T 3

Further particulars in relation to directors’ remuneration and the R# TR AIM4E1678 THENE S EH KL
five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to AR EEHES 2~ HEE R REHI T8 RI o
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the

report.
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hEERBRE ()

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 22 September 2004 and
comprises of the three independent non-executive directors, namely,
Mr. Ha Shu Tong, Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew, and Mr. Ting Leung
Huel, Stephen and two executive directors namely, Mr. Ng Cheung
Shing and Mr. Leung King San, Sunny. Mr. Ha is currently the Chairman
of the Nomination Committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include:

° to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

° to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors and to ensure at least one-third of the Board should be
INEDs; and

° to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in

particular the chairman and the chief executive officer.

Attendance of each director at the meeting is set out below:

REEEE

REZBEXR_FTTNFAA-T AR
H=BBUIERTEFNEHREL FEL
BEET REBEEANMABRITERNRES
BREEXRE -

s EOEBFRINEFINRE  ABLA
R (B FhTeaE ~ M R A&RRITE) - Wk
ERREAARRMNEEREMEALE
EEFHMEBRNERS

s MEARESEERAETEENAL
WHBREEBALTHEZERAB LR

EFEERHER
o FMEBMFMITESENEIERER=
DZ—ERTRBIIFNTESF K

© BEFEEAEHREE  UREF(L
HRERRIRAR) BEHBAEE
BRI -

BEFHFEERZBERHEIIWMT -

Number of meetings
Attended/Eligible to attend

HEEE
KB A HERE
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Ng Cheung Shing RRETAE 212
Mr. Leung King San, Sunny R EFTE 2/2
Independent non-executive directors: BYFHTES:
Mr. Ha Shu Tong SRR E 2/2
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew ZRHLTHIR 212
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRELE 2/2

During the year, the work performed by the Nomination Committee
includes, inter alia, the review of the Group’s structure, size and
composition of the Board and assessment of the independence of
independent non-executive directors. No new director was nominated
for appointment during the year.
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INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment Committee was established on 17 May 2012 and
comprises of an independent non-executive directors, Mr. Ha Shu Tong,
and an executive director, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing. Mr. Ng is currently
the Chairman of the Investment Committee. The Investment Committee
is responsible for executing investment guidelines approved by the
Board, monitoring the performance of the investments and proposing
investment strategies to the Board. During the year, the Investment
Committee reported the performance of investments and reviewed the
investment strategies with all directors in the Board meetings.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by the directors. Based on a specific enquiry of the Company’s
directors, the directors have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the year.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Information of the Company and the Group are delivered to its
shareholders through a number of channels, which includes annual
report, interim report, announcements and circulars. The latest
information of the Company and the Group together with the published
documents are also available on the Company’s website.

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a useful platform for
direct communication between the board and shareholders. Separate
resolutions are proposed on each substantially separate issue at the
general meetings.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if
they are unable to attend the meetings.

The process of the Company’s general meeting will be monitored and
reviewed on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be made to
ensure that shareholders’ needs are best served.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
hEERBRE ()

The annual general meeting in 2012 (“the AGM”) was held on 17 May
2012. All directors and the Company’s external auditor attended the
AGM.

According to Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the
“Act”) and Bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws of the Company, shareholders
holding in aggregate not less than 10% of the paid-up capital of the
Company have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
secretary of the Company, to request a special general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition, and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition.

Any number of shareholders representing not less than 5% of the total
voting rights of the Company on the date of the requisition or not less
than 100 shareholders of the Company are entitled to put forward
a proposal for consideration at a general meeting of the Company.
Shareholders should follow the requirements and procedures as set out
in Section 79 of the Act for putting forward such proposal at a general
meeting.

In relation to the shareholders communication, the shareholders can
contact the Company Secretary or the Vice President of Corporate
Development and Communications by email to InvestorRelation@ctil.com
or by mail to 30/F., Prosperity Millennia Plaza, 663 King’'s Road, North
Point, Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there was no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group and have adopted the accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and complied with the requirements of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (which include all Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s independent auditors are
set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 40 and 41.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group. The review covers all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of the Group. No material internal control aspects
of any significant problems were noted. The Board was satisfied that
the internal control system of the Group has been functioned effectively
during the review year.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young has been re-appointed as the independent auditor of
the Company by shareholders at the last annual general meeting. The
remuneration in respect of services provided by Ernst & Young to the
Group in 2012 is summarized as follows:

RERESIZ

FA - EF2CEHNAKERREESIE 2K
Mo BHBEREMBEAEE - BREYK -
LENTEGEARANEEZ AR EERE -
F BRI IV E AN AREAE TS E HIR A
BERE EFeRRLEFERZARBEE
HE—EBROEE -

BEETI &

ZOKERTEMEHAEERRN EERRIBF X
SEER/ANRREZHE c R-TF——F -
BRAZKETEEBARAASBERHIIRG 2 H
B an T

HK$'000
FAT
Auditing services FEIZRT 1,050
Non-auditing services IEZIRTE
Fee for performing agreed upon procedures onthe  BITEBHEZEZE_ZT——F,A=1H
interim results for the six-month period ended LE7NE A B R HAZE AR 2 e iR
30 June 2012 ZER 80
Total st 1,130
COMPANY SECRETARY NEMWE
The company secretary, Mr. Ng Kwok Keung, was appointed as the ARIWEREGLER S +FHA+/\H

Company Secretary of the Company on 18 May 2007 and is a full time
employee of the Group. Mr. Ng is a Certified Public Accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has confirmed
that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
trainings.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

BZERARARZARMNE  YAREEZE
BER REARBEGHMAGHAESTHD
VHRBHDEITORISENR 2 BEEE

ol



Report of the Directors

EEERE

The directors herein present their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended
31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 18
to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 42 to 145.

An interim dividend of HK6 cents per ordinary share was paid on 14
September 2012. The directors recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK6 cents per ordinary share and a special dividend of HK3
cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to shareholders on the
register of members on 29 May 2013. This recommendation has been
incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation of contributed
surplus within the equity section of the statement of financial position.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the published audited financial statements and
reclassified as appropriate, is set out on pages 147 to 148. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes
14 and 15 to the financial statements, respectively. Further details of the
Group’s investment properties are set out on page 146.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
ESgREE

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND AWARDED SHARES

Details of movements in the share capital, share options and awarded
restricted shares of the Company during the year are set out in notes 30,
31 and 32 to the financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF
THE COMPANY

During the year, the Company purchased certain of its shares on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
and these shares were subsequently cancelled by the Company. The
share repurchase has enhanced the net asset value per share and the
earnings per share, which the directors believe is in the best interests of
the Company and the shareholders. Further details of these transactions
are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 33(b) to the financial statements and
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2012, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, amounted to HK$89,555,000, of which HK$21,666,000
has been proposed as final and special dividends for the year. In
addition, the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
HK$38,493,000 may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EESRE(HE)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 35.2% of the total sales for the year and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to 24.6%. Purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 18.3% of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 5.6%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman)

Yan King Shun (Chief Executive Officer)
Leung King San, Sunny

Independent non-executive directors:
Ha Shu Tong

Lee Kwok On, Matthew

Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws, Leung King
San, Sunny and Lee Kwok On, Mathew will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Prior to 1 April 2012, the independent non-executive directors did
not have a specific term of appointment but are subject to retirement
by rotation in accordance with the provisions of the bye-laws of the
Company.

In order to reinforce its compliance to corporate governance code to
appoint non-executive director for a specific term, with effect from 1
April 2012, all independent non-executive directors of the Company
renewed their appointments with the Company for specific terms of three
years but are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
provisions of the bye-laws of the Company.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Ha Shu Tong, Lee Kwok On, Matthew, and Ting Leung Huel, Stephen,
and as at the date of this report still considers them to be independent.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
ESgREE

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 15 to 17 of the annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board
of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group. In addition, the directors’
remuneration is reviewed by the Remuneration Committee annually.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Eseis (8

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES EERRBRHOREBEROZERZREAE
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2012, the interests of the directors in the share RZ-E——F+-_F=+—H EEFZRARQ
capital and underlying shares of the Company and its associated &N EIRESEE(TERE %}&Hﬁfﬂﬂ{vu((
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures 35 & EAE &5 | ) SEXVER) 2 BR AN K A A A
Ordinance (the “SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to be kept ﬁF'E]HXT/VE\?@TEKhﬁ&ﬁlﬁ%’jﬂ%fﬁu%352{5%},%%
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise T‘EZ%‘EEEH%EPﬁﬁaaﬁzijz@ﬂii‘ﬁ%éf??/\%%

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model #1735 5 HEXESFR) BITHIE AN 7] L HE
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as P2 f#Emal T -

follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RAFREBEERZEFE

Number of shares held, capacity and
nature of interest

FEBBRHEE - HoRESREE

Percentage

of the

Directly Through Company’s

beneficially controlled issued share

Note owned corporation Total capital

LER NG|

HiE britic) 2RITRA

Name of director EERR BfaE BERER ZESLA mE B
Ng Cheung Shing SEB (a) 1,802,000 110,000,000 111,802,000 45.58
Leung King San, Sunny 2= 1,010,000 - 1,010,000 0.41
Yan King Shun F=iE 3,358,000 - 3,358,000 1.37
6,170,000 110,000,000 116,170,000 47.36
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EESWRE(E)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions in shares of an associated corporation:

EERROKERKRG 2BHERKXR
(%)

EBEERD 2R

Number of shares Percentage of

BB EE the associated
Name of Relationship Directly Through  corporation’s
associated with the beneficially controlled  issued share
Name of director corporation Company Class of shares owned corporation capital
R EE
BEARNT HE ZB EROREX
BEEpE LB B 2B B 40 5l BERER ZEHAH ERal
Ng Cheung Shing Computer And Company’s Non-voting 1,750,000 3,250,000 N/A
SRR Technologies subsidiary deferred (note Fi5E(b)) TNE A
International Y /NC] od ERERRET
Limited Li=NG
M RSBRAR
Notes: iz -

(a) The 110,000,000 shares were held by Chao Lien Technologies Limited (“Chao Lien”),

a wholly-owned subsidiary of C.S. (BVI) Limited. Mr. Ng Cheung Shing was entitled
to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general
meetings of C.S. (BVI) Limited, which in turn was entitled to exercise or control the
exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general meetings of Chao Lien.
Accordingly, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing was deemed, under the SFO, to be interested in
all shares held by Chao Lien.

(b) The 3,250,000 non-voting deferred shares were held by Chao Lien.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the directors
had registered an interest or a short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections “Share option scheme” and “Restricted
share award scheme” below, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any director or their respective spouses or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EsaRE(#)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for
the primary purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Further details of the Scheme are disclosed in note 31 to the financial
statements.

No share option of the Company was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed during the year.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a restricted share award scheme (the “Award
Scheme”) on 22 May 2008 (the “Adoption Date”). Pursuant to the
Award Scheme, shares of the Company (the “Awarded Shares”) are
granted to eligible employees (including directors) of the Group until the
10th anniversary from the Adoption Date. The Company shall also pay
cash to the appointed trustee company for its acquisition and holding
upon trust of the Awarded Shares for the benefit of these employees
and directors. The Awarded Shares will then be transferred to these
employees and directors upon vesting. The aggregate number of shares
to be awarded under the Award Scheme throughout its duration shall
not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to
time.

Details of the Award Scheme and the shares awarded thereunder are set
out in note 32 to the financial statements.

BRESE

AARETZ BT EI (518l ) T B /YA
SEXBRINMELER A ER2HBERHE
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EES-EE )

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED) BRSP4 BT 8 (&)

TEREIHE_FT——F+_A=1+—HBLF
[E A 2R 8ITR T E2m A (D < BB R HHE ) -

The following table illustrates the number of and movements of the
Awarded Shares under the Award Scheme for the year ended 31

December 2012.
Number of Unvested Awarded Shares
FEBRBRGEAE
Weighted
At Awarded Vested Forfeited At average
Name of category 1 January during during during 31 December Vesting period of fair value
of participant 2012 the year the year the year 2012 Award date Awarded Shares per share
i RZB-=F 5R
SRENS —B--f £ £ R +=A mEFH
PR -A-H 2&m EHE 2RW =t-8 RERMAS RERAREED AYE
HK$
BT
Directors
gz
Ng Cheung Shing 580,000 - (200,000) - 380,000 23 July 2008 30 June 2009 to 0.61
RRB —TZNE 30 June 2015
+A=+=H _77HEAH +HE
Z-RE~ A=A
Yan King Shun 580,000 - (200,000) - 380,000 23 July 2008 30 June 2009 to 0.61
(-] —EEN\E 30 June 2015
+A=+=H _77H¢Aﬂ +HE
ﬁi/ \H _+ El
Yan King Shun 250,000 - (50,000) - 200,000 1 April 2011 30 April 2012 to 159
TRME —2——F 30 April 2016
mA—A U e =
ZE- R EmA=TAH
1,410,000 - (450,000) - 960,000
Other employees
HitES
In aggregate 900,000 - (300,000) (120,000) 480,000 23 July 2008 30 June 2009 to 0.61
e —ZTN\F 30 June 2015
+tA=+=H ZETNERAZTAE
“Z-RF~A=1H
In aggregate 680,000 - (138,000) (128,000) 414,000 1 March 2010 30 April 2011 to 1.35
st “F-% 30 April 2015
=A-H *T——EEH +HZ
T-AFNA=1A
In aggregate 96,000 - (12,000) (48,000) 36,000 3 January 2011 31 December 2011 to 1.50
st —2——F 31 December 2015
—A=H *i——iﬂ- A=+-B%
Z-R¥+ZA=1-H
In aggregate 320,000 - (36,000) (140,000) 144,000 15 November 2011 30 September 2012 to 1.20
B —2-F 30 September 2016
+—A+HhA —Z-ZEAR=THZE
ZE-R"ENA=TAH
3,406,000 - (936,000) (436,0000 2,034,000
ANNUAL REPORT 2012 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



Report of the Directors (continued)

Eseis (8

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’

INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2012, the following interests of more than 5% of the
issued share capital and share options of the Company were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

Section 336 of the SFO:

FTERRREMALTARSG REBER

10z s

RZE—ZF+_A=+—H A TAKXRT
ARSI HARIRRE 75 I I B R DI 58 336 1568 E
FEZERECMAEARRREHITRALE
PR % A b2 HE g

Long positions: Ha
Number of Percentage of the Number
Name of shareholder ordinary Company’s issued of share
of the Company Notes Capacity and nature of interest shares held share capital options held
EAERER i AARBEST Fris
wE/ER BoRERME ZBEREE N BREZE
Chao Lien Technologies Limited Directly beneficially owned 110,000,000 44.85 -
BHRHRBR AR BEEERRES
C.S. (BVI) Limited Through a controlled corporation 110,000,000 4485 -
BRZIESIA
Puttney Investments Limited (“PIL") Directly beneficially owned 29,148,938 11.88 -
BEEERRES
Hutchison International Limited (“HIL") Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.88 -
BRZIESIA
Hutchison Whampoa Limited (“HWL") Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.88 -
ME=EHEaRAR(MNE]) FRZIEEIRD
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.88 -
(“CKH") FBBZIEHR
RIBEXE(SE)ERAF
(IRED
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.88 -
Limited (“TUT1") FBBZIEHR
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.88 -
Limited (“TDT1") FBZIEHR
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.88 -
(“TDT2") FBBZIEHR
Li Ka-Shing Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.88 -
e FRZIEHIRD
Hui Yau Man Directly beneficially owned 26,782,000 10.92 -
FT4h3C BEEERRS
Bt ESNEEBERA ZE-CFFR
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EES-EE )

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

Long positions: (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(c)

The interest was also disclosed as an interest of Mr. Ng Cheung Shing in the section
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares” of this
report.

PIL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HIL, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of HWL. By virtue of the SFO, HWL and HIL were deemed to be interested in the
29,148,938 shares of the Company held by PIL.

Prior to 16 July 2012, Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited (“TUHL"), of which each of
Li Ka-Shing, Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor, and Li Tzar Kai, Richard was interested in one-third
of the entire issued share capital, owns the entire issued share capital of TUT1. TUT1
as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust, together with certain companies of which
TUTL as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust is entitled to exercise or control the
exercise of more than one-third of the voting power at general meetings, hold more
than one-third of the issued share capital of CKH. Subsidiaries of CKH are entitled
to exercise or control the exercise of more than one-third of the voting power at the
general meetings of HWL. Effective from 16 July 2012, Li Tzar Kai. Richard ceased to
have any interest in the issued share capital of TUHL. Li Ka-Shing and Li Tzar Kuoi,
Victor are respectively interested in one-third and two-third of the entire issued share
capital of TUHL.

In addition, TUHL also owns the entire issued share capital of TDT1 as trustee of
The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary Trust (“DT1”) and TDT2 as trustee of another
discretionary trust (“DT2"). Each of TDT1 and TDT2 holds units in The Li Ka-Shing
Unity Trust.

By virtue of the SFO, each of Li Ka-Shing, being the settlor and may being regarded as
a founder of DT1 and DT2 for the purpose of the SFO, TDT1, TDT2, TUT1 and CKH
were deemed to be interested in the 29,148,938 shares of the Company held by PIL.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the
section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying
shares” above, had registered an interest or a short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EsaRE(#)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities of the Company and the Group are set
out in note 35 to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ng Cheung Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2013
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Independent Auditors’ Report
R EES

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
=z ik

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF COMPUTER AND TECHNOLOGIES
HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 42 to 145, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)
BYREERE (&)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2012, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F

CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

18 March 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement

ek ] .

Year ended 31 December 2012 & ZE—E——F+=-A=+—HILFE

2012 2011
— —2——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B =T FHExT T
(Restated)
(&E3))
REVENUE 'ON 5 206,708 391,209
Cost of sales and services HE R RIS (113,118) (284,194)
Gross profit E7 93,590 107,015
Other income and gains, net E I A Mz 558 5 9,550 24,262
Fair value gains/(losses), net: NEEWES (BE)FE -
Financial assets at fair value through BAFELESRARZ
profit or loss EEE 6,262 (5,858)
Derivative financial instruments — PTEFBITAE-TEERE
transactions not qualifying as hedges TEEHR 2R 5) 130 72
Investment properties "B 16,610 9,068
Selling and distribution expenses SHE ko iHM X (30,306) (33,097)
General and administrative expenses — MR ITHAX (44,634) (44,424)
Finance costs B % & 7 (100) (545)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FRBE AR R 6 51,102 56,493
Income tax expense FriSHiF X 10 (4,100) (5,517)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO BATEEAER
OWNERS OF THE PARENT REERR 11 47,002 50,976
2012 2011
—E--F —T——%
HK cents HK cents
=il il
(Restated)
(&%)
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BRATEEBERKR
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT EEERER 13
Basic HK 19.50 20.88
Diluted ' 19.34 20.67

Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are disclosed — ZR4E & fE R R EEIR B 2 sE BB 1S s B e
in note 12 to the financial statements. 123 5T o
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

AR ERER m

Year ended 31 December 2012 & EZ —E——F+_-_A=+—RHIFFE

2012 2011
—F-=F —F—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT T
(Restated)
(&E%1)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REE R 47,002 50,976
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME HibZ2mEmUBA
Available-for-sale investment: A HERE -
Changes in fair value NEEEE 100 150
Exchange differences on translation of HEBINECRTEA 2
foreign operations EH =5 340 2,439
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AEFHEMEEUBA -
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX MR IE 440 2,589
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME SARHE AEEAREE
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO e PN L]
OWNERS OF THE PARENT 47,442 53,565
Bl 2R EEAR AR T FEER
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

GAMBRRARE =

31 December 2012 —F——F+—=-A=+—H

31 December 31 December 1 January
2012 2011 2011
—F-=F —F——F —F——F
+=A=+-8B +ZRA=+—H —A—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B=E FTEx FHIT FHL
(Restated) (Restated)
(7)) (E71))
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BENERE 14 5,880 5,660 7,649
Investment properties BB 15 47,582 30,972 32,278
Goodwill B 16 25,813 25,813 25813
Other intangible assets Hip R G E 17 - - -
Available-for-sale investment AMEHERE 19 2,100 2,000 1,850
Financial assets at fair value AT ELER
through profit or loss AR B EE 24 8,555 3,187 847
Total non-current assets FERBEERE 89,930 67,632 68,437
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories 7E 20 11,300 12,431 18,482
Trade and bills receivables JEWE SERT N
S 21 27,263 67,615 74,441
Prepayments, deposits and BNTE - Rek
other receivables H e Y RIE 22 6,042 6,313 9,076
Due from contract customers e S E-Y=E O] 23 3,351 3,999 7,530
Financial assets at fair value BAFELER
through profit or loss AR B EE 24 17,481 20,100 10,648
Tax recoverable ARERIA 3,803 2226 1,907
Derivative financial assets THERBEE 27 - 91 =
Pledged bank deposits BEERRITEN 25 60,097 31,774 37,560
Cash and cash equivalents REeRERRCEE 25 274,806 311,837 287,501
Total current assets TENBERE 404,149 456,386 447 145
CURRENT LIABILITIES hREBRE
Trade payables, other payables JERE S8RT
and accruals H At 5RTE R
&R0 26 69,715 90,017 95,140
Derivative financial liabilities PTEREERE 27 - 221 202
Interest-bearing bank borrowings MERITEE 28 - 22,526 26,520
Due to contract customers EANEHRPIIE 23 2,511 3,019 2,658
Deferred revenue ELEUWA 12,419 5,937 6,186
Tax payable eI 8,144 15,223 11,739
Total current liabilities mEE ERE 92,789 136,943 142,445
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEEE 311,360 319,443 304,700
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

e MBRRER(E)

31 December 2012 —E——F+=-F=+—H

31 December 31 December 1 January
2012 2011 2011
—B-C-F —T——%F T
+=A=+-H +=ZA=+—H —A—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(i3 FHET FHAT FHIT
(Restated) (Restated)
(7)) 7))
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 311,360 319,443 304,700
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBAR
LIABILITIES 401,290 387,075 373,137
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES krRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFHIEEE 29 1,045 917 803
Net assets BEFE 400,245 386,158 372,334
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners BAREEA
of the parent i3y £
Issued capital BEETRA 30 24,529 24,604 25,273
Reserves &1 33(a) 354,050 344,659 332,253
Proposed final and BRARHE &
special dividends BRI E 12 21,666 16,895 14,808
Total equity HEn 400,245 386,158 372,334
Ng Cheung Shing R BB Leung King San, Sunny 2 = %7
Director &% Director %
R RSB AR A A —E—FER
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEREm#ER

Year ended 31 December 2012 & E—E——F+—-A=+—RIFE

Atributable to owners of the parent

BOFREAERL
Shares held
under the Available-
restricted Share- for-sale
Share share hased investment Exchange Proposed
Issued ~ premium  Contributed award  payment  Goodwill revaluation  Reseve  fluctuiation  Retained final Total
capital ~ account surplus~ scheme Teserve Tesenve Teserve funds Tesene profits ~ dividend equity
RERRH
RH%E THE
B3 k Eif REEf EiRd &i
kx  RER AARR b1vi i HEER B BRES RE REEH AHRE REEE
Notes HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HK$000
HisE Tir  TAn Tirn T T T T T T T T T
(note 33(a)) (note 33(a)) (note 33(a))
(330 (Fi3E331a) (FiE33(e)
At1 January 2011: RZF—5-A-R:
As previously reported FHER 523 843 14696 (6,40) 2876 (7.22) 690 73 186 151615 14808 309,708
Prior year adjustments 5% 22 = - - - - - - - - 2626 - 262
HED] 523 B3 14696 (6,405) 2876 (7.22) 690 3 1866 154241 14808 3233%
Proft for the year (as restated) REEEH (&) o = 5 o o = = o = 50976 = 50976
Other comprehensive income for the year: TEERBZEMA :
Changes infairvalue of an avallableforsale AT EREATESE
investment, net oftax HHE - - - - - - 150 - - - = 150
Exchange diffrences on ranslaton of REEERES,
foreign operations ERZE - - - - - - - - 2439 - - 2439
Total comprefensive income for the year FEEREANES - - - - - - 15 - 2439 50976 - R
Repurchase of shares EERA 3 (669) - (10870) - - - - - - - - (115%9)
Vesting of shares held under the restricted! ERFIRAREEET
share award scheme RhEE kY - - - 129 (1,29) = = = = = = =
Share atierd anangements RiysEzSE 2 - - = = 1067 = = = = = = 1067
Final 2010 dividend declared SR-5-5ER4RE - - 193 = - - - - - - (14808 (14615)
Interim 2011 dividend 12 - - (ldeM) - - - - - - - - (146M)
Proposed final 2011 dividend 12 - - (168%) - - - - - - - 168% -
At31 December 2011 WZE-——F+ZR=1-A 4604 38493 104770 (BP0 (1221 840+ 733 4305 2052070 168% 36158
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

MEEREER(E)
Year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —E——F+_HA=+—HILFE .
Atributable to owners of the parent
SOREARL
Shares held
under the Available-
restricted Share- for-sale Proposed
Share share based investment Exchange final
Issued ~ premium  Contributed award  payment  Goodwill  revaluation Reserve  fluctuation  Retained  and special Total
capital ~ account suplus ~ scheme Teserve Tesenve Teserve funds Teserve profits ~dividends equity
RERRS
Lvikd g &It
2&f R R ROMR REEf EXgD RER
ks BER 4AER 2k BE  HEEE B BRES BE REEH  BARE  ER4E
Notes HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HK$'000
iz Tén  TEn TEn T T TEn T T TEn TEn T TEn
(note 33(a)) (note 33(a)) (note 33(a))
(£330 (£330 (53302
At 1 January 2012: RZ3-5-A-R:
As previously reported e 24604 38493 104770 (5,176) 2704 (1,221) 840 3 4305 203,159 16895 384,100
Prior year adjustments WHERA% 22 - - - - - - - - - 2058 - 2058
As restated =) 2604 38493+ 104770 (176 2704 (1221 840 133 4305 20527 16895 386,158
Proft for the year REEET - - - - - - - - - 41,002 - 47,002
(Other comprehensive income for the year: TEEEMZEMA :
Changes i fair value of an avallable-forsale ~ EEERENTERS
nvestment, net of tax HBHE - - - - - - 100 - - _ - 100
Exchange differences on translation of BEMEREELY
foreign operations Eizg - - - - - - - - 0 - - 0
Total comprehensive income for the year AER2ARAEE - - - - - - 100 - W 400 - s
Repurchse of shares EEkA 3 (15) - (1,190) - - - - - - - - (1,265)
Purchase of shares held under the restricted BB BRBIRMEE:2ET
share award scheme bl 3 - - - (1372) - - - - - - - (1312)
Vesting of shares held under the restricted BRHRDREEET
share award scheme B R - - - 958 (958) - - - - - - -
Share award arrangements i3 32 - - - - 633 - - - - - - 633
Final 2011 dividend declared E) - - pil - - - - - - - (16805  (16,368)
Iterim 2012 dividend 3 12 - - (14,483) - - - - - - - - (14483)
Proposed final and special 2012 dividends oy 12 - - (21,666) - - - - - - - 21,666 -
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—5+-A=1-A 14529 38493 67458* (5800 2319 (1221 940 733 46456 250,219 21666 400245
& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$354,050,000  * ZERBLRERCREMBRARRZES

(2011: HK$344,659,000, as restated) in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

fi# #5 354,050,000 B T (Z T ——F : £HI &

344,659,000/ 7T ) °

MR G REER AR

T FFHR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERERER

Year ended 31 December 2012 & ZE—E——F+=-A=+—HILFE

2012 2011
—E--F —T——%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B FHExT T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHRERE
Profit before tax: B A B Al 51,102 56,493
Adjustments for: BT
Financial costs 75 & 7 100 545
Bank interest income SRITHBHA 5 (9,193) (6,474)
Dividend income from listed investments EmiEE ZREWA 5 (953) (554)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, HEDE  HEK
plant and equipment JABIEE 2
&8, () 6 3 (6,865)
Gain on disposal of an investment property HEREYHE 2 W 5 - (73)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of financial assets HEZA T ELER AR
at fair value through profit or loss I EERE (W) 5 1,600 (255)
Fair value losses/(gains), net: AFEEE (W) F58
Financial assets at fair value through A EKBHEARZ
profit or loss WIEEE 6 (6,262) 5,858
Investment properties LB 6 (16,610) (9,068)
Derivative financial instruments PTEBTA
— transactions not qualifying as hedges —PNEERIEL 2
5 6 - 130
— settlement of derivative financial —REETAKT A
instruments 6 (130) (202)
Depreciation e 6 1,521 1,682
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE 5 RFORE 6 198 188
Write-down of inventories to net FEMURZ A 23R FE
realisable value 6 291 -
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables % [ElfE U2 5 BE R E 6 (59) (1,580)
Reversal of impairment of amounts due B o e & 4R F 708
from contract customers BE 6 - (758)
Reversal of trade receivables written off ¥ o] fE UK 8 5 BR ZM 5 6 - (227)
Reversal of impairment of amounts due B o e & 4R F 08
from contract customers written off VSR = 6 - (34)
Write-off of inventories FEIE 6 596 —
Write-off of items of property, VI - BB K &EIEE
plant and equipment i 6 83 105
Equity-settled share-based payment A A 45 & AR (D S A 2
expense 32 633 1,057
22,920 39,968
Decrease in inventories FERD 244 6,051
Decrease in trade and bills receivables FEUE 5 IR K R E R
NEHA 40,213 8,416
Decrease in amounts due from R A 4% B SRR R
contract customers 648 4,323
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and TANFIE - e KA ME
other receivables W sRTE R > 271 2,763
Decrease in trade payables, other payables — FEIE ZBE2R « E b fE(T
and accruals IR R EET FIRR (20,302) (5,135)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to EREXTEIE
contract customers #in, CRid) (508) 361
Increase/(decrease) in deferred revenue EEWAIE AN CF) 6,482 (249)
Cash generated from operations BEETEFTISIRE 49,968 56,498
Hong Kong profits tax paid BB BEN (5,924) (2,509)
Overseas taxes paid B UG INRIR (6,805) (176)
Net cash flows from operating activities CEEBFEIREREF5E 37,239 53,813
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

FERSRER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2012 HE—F——F+=-A=+—RHIFE

2012 2011
— S
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Fo5E FHET FAT
Net cash flows from operating activities KL EBFBHSREF5 37,239 53,813
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETHZ2EERE
Bank interest received BUERTTHE 9,193 6,474
Dividends received from listed investments B _EHRETWAL B 729 474
Purchases of items of property, EEWMZE - BE K&
plant and equipment Bl (1,751) (871)
Purchases of listed investments BE FhmiksE (11,849) (19,406)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWZ  HE &
plant and equipment RAEIE B TS 3R 3 8,005
Proceeds from disposal of an investment HEREYESRIE
property - 10,447
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERAFELERARZ
at fair value through profit or loss WG EEFTS A 13,980 2,091
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BERIRITIF RO 21,725 5,786
Increase in non-pledged bank deposits WEERE REIHA R
with original maturity of more than WBR=EAZ
three months when acquired U IRTTIE FIE A0 (41,598) (317)
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing w&ESE,(FTH)
activities R M= F58 (9,568) 12,683
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEHZRERE
Repurchase of shares EAElb G 30 (1,265) (11,539)
Purchase of shares under the restricted FE B BRI 22T &
share award scheme =ERNiE) 32 (1,372) -
New bank loans FERITER 28 - 22,526
Repayment of bank loans EEBRITER (22,526) (26,520)
Dividends paid ERE (31,351) (29,259)
Interest paid BEAFLE (100) (533)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BME ARSI REFRE (56,614) (45,325)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND ReRERAEEEZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS #in/ (R ) B8 (28,943) 21,171
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FYZIReMERIBEEE
of year 305,609 281,590
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [ R & &)~ 572 %58 362 2,848
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END FRZREREGDREEE
OF YEAR 277,028 305,609
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERERRESEE
CASH EQUIVALENTS EERDW
Cash and cash equivalents as stated BIEARARITIRZ
in the statement of financial position BEhERBEEE 274,806 311,837
Pledged deposit for banking facility granted ~ $847#tH REIEE A
by a bank with original maturity less than NEB=EAZ
three months RITHE < FTE 17K 25 50,048 =
Non-pledged time deposits with original U B B R I HA H
maturity of more than three months BBE=EA
when acquired EEREEER (47,826) (6,228)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the BERERITZ
statement of cash flows RERERREEE 277,028 305,609

R R e

EBRAA T FEER
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Statement of Financial Position

BAFE AR T 2R

31 December 2012 —F——F+—=-A=+—H

2012 2011
—E-CF —T—%
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RITB AT Z1EE 18 147,797 178,588
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments FEfTFIR 22 255 256
Cash and cash equivalents BERERBEEE 25 1,651 4116
Total current assets MBI EELE 1,906 4,372
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAME
Accruals FEETTRIE 26 337 266
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFRE 1,569 4,106
Net assets BEFE 149,366 182,694
EQUITY E
Issued capital BT 30 24,529 24 604
Reserves (= 33(b) 103,171 141,195
Proposed final and special dividends BUORRNEA R ER RIS B 12 21,666 16,895
Total equity HEmBE 149,366 182,694

Ng Cheung Shing & KB
Director &%
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 3 5 B

Year ended 31 December 2012 & E—E——F+=-HA=+—HILFE

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of
the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The principal place of business of the
Company is located at 30th Floor, Prosperity Millennia Plaza, 663
King's Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

o sale of computer networks and system platforms, the
provision of system and network integration, information
technology (“IT”) solutions development and implementation,
and related maintenance services;

o provision of enterprise software applications and related
operation outsourcing, business process outsourcing and
e-business, and related maintenance services; and

° property and treasury investments.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties,
derivative financial instruments, available-for-sale investment and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

2.1

R RSB AR A

SEER

BBMESESBEERAFTINE RiE
AR 2 BRAR - EFEfMrEE
£iZ 72 Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda ° "2 @] £ &
& E B R B S A 2B 66355% 5k
BEXTEREISI0E -

FA - AEBRFEATEEZER

s HEBEMBEKEERTA  RH
R R BEER R - BB
BORT RBER R E A RARRR
2R

o  REHOOETMEAKIAM[ERN
HEBREMHREFEZR
BARERREIRTS - &

s DERREBRE -

AR

HEMBRERIIREAB LSS
(FEAEEAE )R 2 BBNHR
SEA(TBAMBREEN D (EHE
ERATEMBRELR  FEGHE
A(IFEEEA ] ki)  FEY
BEMNGARUREBRRIED 2B
BREMMRR - LKEELKAED R
B HERAFEAEZREDE  TE
META  AHHERERZAFER
BRARZMBEEERI - ILERTER
KRIABT(TET]) 2% BREEMR
g0 FTEBEHNEAAEZREIT
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BARE R M (4R

Year ended 31 December 2012 HE=—F——F+=-HA=+—RHIFE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED) 2.1 REEE(E)

52

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2012. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions,
unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions
and dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed to the
non-controlling interest even if it results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R R 5 M (AR

Year ended 31 December 2012 HE—F——F+=-A=+—RHIFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption
of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
— Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed
Dates for First-time Adopters

HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets

HKAS 12 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes —
Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of
HKAS 12 Amendments, the adoption of the revised HKFRSs has
had no significant financial effect on these financial statements.

The principal effects of adopting HKAS 12 Amendments are as
follows:

The HKAS 12 Amendments clarify the determination of deferred
tax for investment property measured at fair value and introduce a
rebuttable presumption that deferred tax on investment property
measured at fair value should be determined on the basis that its
carrying amount will be recovered through sale. Furthermore, the
amendments incorporate the requirement previously in HK(SIC)-
Int 21 Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable
Assets that deferred tax on non-depreciable assets, measured using
the revaluation model in HKAS 16, should always be measured on
a sale basis. Prior to the adoption of the amendments, deferred
tax with respect to the Group’s investment properties was provided
on the basis that the carrying amount will be recovered through
use, and accordingly the profits tax rate had been applied to
the calculation of deferred tax arising on the revaluation of the
Group’s investment properties. Upon the adoption of HKAS 12
Amendments, deferred tax in respect of the Group’s investment
properties is provided on the presumption that the carrying amount
will be recovered through sale.

22 EtBRRBEEZEH

AEBEDRAFE 2 BB HRER B IRERA
ATRIEFT BB BREER -

BEMBRERARIE  BEMBREERIR

(BFTA) BLFNEENE
HEER-REZIE
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BEMBRERAETE  BEMBREEETR
(BFTA) HBIR RE-
BRIFEE LR
ER G EAIR12H EEEEAIF125
CHES) Frieh —EEHE K
EIREE Z1EF]

R T XN BB G ERF 125 (7]
R)HEZE—FBMREN  RAEE
Rl EBMBREENE L FMBRRL
BEAMBHE

UL E S E R E 128 (BTA) 2
EBHEMT :

FEGRTERIZE 1258 (ER]A) MR
BERATEFEZREME ZRLER
B WS A-IEAIREHE - BMHRAF
B EZREMFEEHARILZERE
BEfEBHEWRE 2 EEET - b
ZEEFTMALAMERE L (FHRE
Z8Q) RERANRFFH —KEE
ERHTEEEZER  AERELES
FHERIEI6R 2 BRBRAGEZIFTE
BERERIFERRHEERGTE - NIK
MZFERTA - BRAAKEREME
BRI R REE R EEERKRD 2
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MEFHEEHAKEREMEMEL L
EREFIR - RERAT B ERF 1257
(BRI - ERAAKERENEZE
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BARE R M (4R

Year ended 31 December 2012 & ZE=—ZE——F+=—A=+—RHILFE . .

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES 2.2 @ BURRINE 2 %8 (F)
(CONTINUED)

The effects of the above change are summarised below: B 2 AT ¢
2012 2011
=F-=F —F—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx T

Consolidated income statement for the year B2 —A=+—HILFEZ

ended 31 December ol =T
Decrease/(increase) in income tax expense FriSfR R SR, (3 n) 2,640 (568)
Increase/(decrease) in profit for the year RERDREFIECRd) 2,640 (568)
Increase/(decrease) in basic earnings per share  GRFEAZFIIE N (F L)

(HK cents) (L) 1.10 (0.23)
Increase/(decrease) in diluted earnings per share &SR FL 11~ (kL)

(HK cents) (L) 1.09 (0.23)
Consolidated statement of financial position R+=—A=+—H

at 31 December AR BB A AR
Decrease in deferred tax liabilities and total FEREEERIERESERE

non-current liabilities WBIER D (4,698) (2,058)
Increase in net assets and reserves BEFENFEEEN 4,698 2,058
Consolidated statement of financial position R—HA—HZ 4507

at 1 January IR
Decrease in deferred tax liabilities and total BLEHBEERIERESEE

non-current liabilities BER D (2,626)
Increase in net assets and reserves BEFE & FEEE N 2,626
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R R 5 M (AR

Year ended 31 December 2012 HE—F——F+=-A=+—RHIFE

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements:

HKFRS 1 Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards —
Government Loans 2

HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities 2

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 4

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 2

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 2

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 Amendments

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 - Transition Guidance 2

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and

and HKAS 27 (2011) HKAS 27 (2011) - Investment Entities 3
Amendments
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 2

HKAS 1 Amendments

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Presentation of Items
of Other Comprehensive Income !

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits 2

HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements 2

HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures ?
HKAS 32 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Annual Improvements 2009-
2011 Cycle

Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities 3

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a
Surface Mine 2

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued in
June 2012 2

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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Year ended 31 December 2012 HE=—F——F+=-HA=+—RHIFE

2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application
but is not yet in a position to state whether these new and
revised HKFRSs would have a significant impact on its results of
operations and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 FESBERME(E)

(CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities
of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on
the relative value of the disposed operation and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 FESBERBME(E)
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(CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Gooadwill previously eliminated against consolidated reserves

Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA’s Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice 30 Business Combinations (“SSAP 30”)
in 2001, goodwill arising on acquisition was eliminated against
consolidated reserves in the year of acquisition. On the adoption of
HKFRS 3, such goodwill remains eliminated against consolidated
reserves and is not recognised in the income statement when all or
part of the business to which the goodwill relates is disposed of or
when a cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes
impaired.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
financial assets, investment properties and goodwill), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement
in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person (i) has control or joint control over the
Group; (ii) has significant influence over the Group; or (iii) is
a member of the key management personnel of the Group or
of a parent of the Group; or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is @ member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the income statement in the period in which it
is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter of the lease terms
and 2% to 4%

Over the shorter of the lease terms
and 20%

20% to 33Y5%

Leasehold improvements

Computer equipment and
software

Furniture, fixtures and other
equipment

Motor vehicles

18% to 25%
20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 FESHBERME(E)

(CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income statement in the
year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the income statement in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of property for subsequent accounting
is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a property occupied
by the Group as an owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property, the Group accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” up to the date of change in use,
and any difference at that date between the carrying amount and
the fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” above.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at each financial year end.
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(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
expected commercial lives of the underlying products/services
not exceeding five years, commencing from the date when the
products/services are available for commercial use.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the
purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance
leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are
charged to the income statement so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases are charged to the income statement on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 FESHBERME(E)

(CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements, the
entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.
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Investments and other financial assets RERHMBKEEE
Initial recognition and measurement BB R E

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale financial investments, as
appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by
HKAS 39.
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(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with positive net
changes in fair value presented as other income and gains and
negative net changes in fair value presented as finance costs in
the income statement. These net fair value changes do not include
any dividends or interest earned on these financial assets, which
are recognised in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria under HKAS 39 are satisfied.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent to sell them
in the near term is still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets and management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable
future significantly changes, the Group may elect to reclassify
them. The reclassification from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss to loans and receivables, available-for-sale
financial assets or held-to-maturity investments depends on the
nature of the assets. This evaluation does not affect any financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss using the
fair value option at designation, as these instruments cannot be
reclassified after initial recognition.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement. Reassessment only occurs
if there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required.
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(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in other
income and gains in the income statement. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the income statement.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in unlisted club membership debentures. Debts securities
in this category are those which are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to
needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or
losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the investment
is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in the income statement, or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve to the income statement in other expenses. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognised in the income statement in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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(CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. In
that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

RIEBAMBEE

MBEE(WER  YHEERS —
D —HBEUZHMBEERS 3

DE FHIER T IR -

e HREEWIRLREZENE
fEiR 2K

s AKECERUDMKEZEER
EREZERN > REREIEE]
ZHER AR BN B E AER
BAL T R 58 =& 2 BN B WA
RBen  R@QAKECHEHREZE
EXEDRR RO - H(b)AE
liﬂL%T1%%Ei§FZK*B

DERKLER - EEEBRZEE
ZAEHIHE -

HEAREDEBREAEERIERER
BZRENKCIIZERELZS - RIFFER
BREMRE LREBEEEHBEZER
KEH - EETERXTNMREEE B
RED R RO - MEEREE T
B - RIZEERASBEESEZE
EZRERR - N&BERAT  AEETR
RiEREEEE CHEEEENERA
BEIARBRAEEFREENLEER

+ﬁ+§ °

HARREEREEZ T ABEESRE -
DREEZREHERASERETE
BREZREREMEZREETE -



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B S o5 B (4]
Year ended 31 December 2012 & EZ—FE——F+=-_A=+—HILEE .

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 FESHBERME(E)

(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets BB EERE
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether AREBRBEARSHEEELTERS
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group EREZEF RE AR EAMBEEED

of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred
“loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate
for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate.
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(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
income statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If
a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the income
statement.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the income statement, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded
for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
income statement. Future interest income continues to be accrued
based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest
income is recorded as part of finance income. Impairment losses
on debt instruments are reversed through the income statement,
if the increase in fair value of the instruments can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities of the Group within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. The Group determines
the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
financial liabilities included in accruals, derivative financial
liabilities and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading. This category includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are
not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by HKAS 39. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading
are recognised in the income statement. The net fair value gain
or loss recognised in the income statement does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income
statement.
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(CONTINUED)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price
for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.
For financial instruments where there is no active market, the fair
value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Such
techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions;
reference to the current market value of another instrument which
is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and
other valuation models.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward
currency contracts and interest rate swaps, to hedge its foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk, respectively. Such derivative
financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on
the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair
value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
are taken directly to the income statement.
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Treasury shares EEFRS

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (treasury shares) BEAFRATAE(EFERG ) JIIERA
are recognised at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or loss R WEERTR o TeRksRE
is recognised in the income statement on the purchase, sale, issue REE  HE - BT EEARA R LAY

or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments. Any
difference between the carrying amount and the consideration is
recognised in equity.
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(CONTINUED)

Shares held under the restricted share award scheme

Where shares of the Company are purchased from the market for
a restricted share award scheme, the consideration paid, including
any directly attributable incremental costs, is presented as “Shares
held under the restricted share award scheme” and deducted
from equity.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case
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of finished goods and work in progress, comprises direct materials, CMEKMEERERME C KASE
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net E%gﬂ%iﬂ HEIENMBESHHZ&E
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any MY o AR EESREGTEEN

estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue represents service fees received in advance
from the rendering of the corresponding services. Revenue
is recognised and deferred revenue is released to the income
statement when the corresponding services have been rendered.

BREEZEKRREEMB AR o

EFEWA

AETE UL A T 1 (4 R B 7% T8 55 W ER 2 FfY
BRGE - ZREABERSEE - iR
%U\ W R aE R AR WA E B
A o

Cash and cash equivalents RERERRESEE

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, REEEHEMERME iﬁ’i\&%ﬁiﬁ
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand S BERETRERS REHER
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are BAB=EARN |jHﬁ—H§;fH¢$j}ﬁ7%E%D
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an AT  BEBENERBRTAZE
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of SREMEE R EREREERE
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts RAEER e BEBAKBD Z2RITE
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the & o

Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and MEEIRASRERmsS e hkERIES

cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including

BEEBERBEATERM 2RERE R

term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not WROTER(BETHEFA R EEEE &
restricted as to use. BUZEE) o
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 FESHBERME(E)

(CONTINUED)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the income statement.

Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax

B
ERBEEMHEPRBEAAREER
£ - MBRAEEDRERBETABE
£ - BBBE SRR St
AIERER A -

HITRFEEAN - ARFAERETEEMN
FRRAXERSHEAE BNRERE
R - KT BRMREBEREREEE
R IR RIER T ER -

Frig®t
PRISH BHEEANE MR AERL IR - A RN 3F

relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised MRIBE R IBRB ZTER » EEMS
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or HWASEENERER °

directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

ML s EEcAREEERE
18 - JhiETAHA AT B AR5 R U B s e R
F%F%ﬁlﬁz/i\gﬁ RIBR RS B

BHEBRMABEERM 2R ER(REE)
AE BRI RARELERERR
Z 2R ER -

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all ISR E MM S NS HEEE
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between BrzBENBEBEZHEEARMERFAT
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts BERHEZE  BIRAEFTIRELER
for financial reporting purposes. TER A o

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary %TL%M\ C T ERG T EEY
differences, except: RERLERIEAE

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

R

s EEHHEABRVIER AR
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(CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(e)

(f)

(g

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership,
nor effective control over the goods sold;

from the rendering of integration and solutions services
and application services (other than the sale of goods or
the provision of maintenance services), on the percentage
of completion basis, as further explained in the accounting
policy for “Contracts for services” below, or when the
relevant services have been performed;

from the provision of maintenance services, on a time
proportion basis over the terms of the respective contract, or
when the relevant services have been performed;

from the sale of listed investments, on the transaction dates
when the relevant contract notes are executed;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;
and

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.
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(CONTINUED)

Contracts for services

Contract revenue on the rendering of services comprises the
agreed contract amount. Contract costs comprise direct equipment
and material costs, labour and other costs of personnel directly
engaged in providing the services and attributable overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of services (other than those that
are recognised on a time proportion basis over the period of the
contract or when the relevant services have been performed, as
appropriate) is recognised based on the percentage of completion
of the transaction, provided that the revenue, the costs incurred
and the estimated costs to completion can be measured reliably.
The percentage of completion is established by reference to the
costs incurred to date as compared to the total costs to be incurred
under the transaction, or the value of services performed to date
as a percentage of the value of total services to be performed
under the transaction. Where the outcome of a contract cannot be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent that
the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are
anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is treated as
an amount due from contract customers. Where progress billings
exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an amount due to
contract customers.

Share-bhased payments

The Company operates two equity-settled, share-based
compensation schemes including a share option scheme and
a restricted share award scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to
the success of the Group’s operations. Employees of the Group
(including directors of the entities comprising the Group) receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments
(“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 FESHBERME(E)

(CONTINUED)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of
each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the income statement for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification, that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options and shares held under
the restricted share award scheme is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in
respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2 only
to equity-settled awards granted after 7 November 2002 that had
not vested by 1 January 2005 and to those granted on or after 1
January 2005.
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(CONTINUED)

Other employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under
their employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under
certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at
the end of each reporting period is permitted to be carried forward
and utilised by the respective employees in the following year.
An accrual is made at the end of each reporting period for the
expected future cost of such paid leave earned during the year by
the employees and carried forward.

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the income statement as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s
employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central retirement
benefit scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central retirement benefit scheme. The
contributions are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central retirement
benefit scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds, and they are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 FESHBERME(E)

(CONTINUED)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors, excluding those relating
to the Company’s own shares held under the Company’s restricted
share award scheme, are classified as a separate allocation of
retained profits and/or other distributable reserves within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and declared,
they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined. The gain
or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation
is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based
on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements,
that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
these properties which are leased out on operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers
whether a property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a
portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and
another portion that is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately or leased out separately under
a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately.
If the portions could not be sold separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

Income taxes

Significant judgement is involved in determining the Group’s
provision for income taxes. There are certain transactions and
computations for which the ultimate tax determination is subject to
the agreement by the relevant tax authority. The Group recognises
liabilities for such transactions based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recognised,
such differences will impact the income tax in the period in which
such determination is made.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
December 2012 was HK$25,813,000 (2011: HK$25,813,000).
Further details are given in note 16 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting
period. Non-financial assets with finite useful lives are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and
its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs to sell
is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at their fair value. The fair value at
the end of each reporting period was based on a valuation on these
properties conducted by an independent firm of professionally
qualified valuers using property valuation techniques which involve
making assumptions on certain market conditions. Favourable
or unfavourable changes to these assumptions would result in
changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment properties and
the corresponding adjustments to the gain or loss are recognised
in the income statement.

Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a loan/receivable is impaired.
To determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment,
the Group considers factors including, inter alia, the probability
of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtors and
default or significant delay in payments.

The Group maintains an allowance for the estimated loss arising
from the inability of its debtors to make the required payments.
The Group makes its estimates based on the ageing of its
receivable balances, debtors’ creditworthiness, and historical
write-off experience. If the financial condition of its debtors was
to deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss might be higher
than expected, the Group would be required to revise the basis of
making the allowance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3. FES:HETRAT(E)
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
Estimation uncertainty (continued) fhst T BB = (%)
Deferred tax assets BT IE B
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to — RS ANBRIEEES/ERLEFREE
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available EERER - MR FER T 5 A B2 A &)
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management HEEHE - BT TR ZELERE
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax BESERN CTEETZREHRBER
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and %% T B9 AT BE RS ) M EUER B & R AR 7S
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning HEISIIEREARHE o E—FEIEE
strategies. Further details are contained in note 29 to the financial AT IR ERT 5229 o
statements.
Impairment of an available-for-sale investment AR EREZ HE
The Group classifies certain assets as available for sale and REEBF Fﬁé/‘*ﬁﬁj—ﬁ e
recognises movements in their fair values in equity. When the fair TREZEREAFEE E=g/NST
value declines, management makes assumptions about the decline BRI BEE ‘%ﬂ%{éﬁd\ﬁf 1R
in value to determine whether there is an impairment that should F o UNEBTESHRWNEREZRME - 1B
be recognised in the income statement. At 31 December 2012, —E——F+-A=+—H8  WEH]
no impairment losses have been recognised for an available-for- A EREEARESEE(ZE——
sale investment (2011: Nil). The carrying amount of the available- F M) o AHEERE/ZEEHEA
for-sale investment was HK$2,100,000 (2011: HK$2,000,000). 2,100,000/t (=& ——%F : 2,000,000
Further details are included in note 19 to the financial statements. BIT) o E—FEFIBE R B A M EE
19 -

Development costs FIZEH A
Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the A2 AN T AR 15 B 75 i 5 BT 5 2. 4 AR 5
accounting policy for research and development costs in note RABKANZEFTHRBERER - B2
2.4 to the financial statements. Determining the amounts to be EEREETETAREERS « FHAHH
capitalised requires management to make assumptions regarding IR LIEEAR 2R EA B /E L (RER - LA
the expected future cash generation of the assets, discount rates TE BT & AN EEE o
to be applied and the expected period of benefits.

M RREEGRA —T - FER
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of assets of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovation and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles. Useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end. The Group will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will write
off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal. These estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience in selling goods of similar
nature. They could change significantly as a result of changes in
market conditions. The Group will reassess the estimations at the
end of each reporting period.

TEETHE R A (&)

fEsT TR E R (&)

Y - b5 Rakie. Al e FR]
AEEBETEME - BERREZG
ERFHRBBTERS - BAMTT
REEUEERYEZEEERAER
FHzBELRMEL - LA ERMNE
¥R AR TT R BMMETT
BMAEES - I ERFRELREY
HFEFERETER  WNEERE
AR o fisl AT £ R F YRR SE Al (b AT
B REESR T EFRT - HAGHEHE
OB BT B R E s B A 2 FEIR S

T AERFE

R ARRFEBE G SRR
PR 1 T B 2 (AR R AT AT
o B REHE R T &
QZENTRRBEERIEY - B
HARETREBTHHREALSD - 4
RENEREMNEE BT
Bt -

Contracts for services RIBEH
The Group recognises certain contract revenue by reference to NEBNEG A ERen] SE{hetE - B

the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the
reporting period, when the outcome of a contract can be estimated
reliably. The stage of completion is measured by reference to the
proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date
bear to the estimated total contract costs to be incurred under the
transaction, or value of services performed to date as a percentage
of the value of total services to be performed under the transaction.
Significant assumptions are required to estimate the total contract
costs and/or the stage of completion, and the recoverable variation
works that will affect the stage of completion. The estimates are
made based on past experience and knowledge of management.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, RENTER

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business BHEEE  KREEREHERNMRS

units based on their products and services and has three S|P EKEN  WEHA T =@ ®RE

reportable operating segments as follows: LEDE

(@) the integration and solutions services segment that engages (@) EXEBERAFRRE SIS
in the sales of computer networks and system platforms, and HESKARLEATE - 121t
the provision of system and network integration, IT solutions AF LMK EK RS - BB
development and implementation, and related maintenance iR B R LB A REBR
services; BERF

(b) the application services segment that engages in the (b) FERRBOBIIMEEREDER
provision of enterprise software applications and related HRERBNABEENA - EBR
operation outsourcing, business process outsourcing and BN - EFEZRE - A KIE
e-business, and related maintenance services; and FRERS &

(c) the investments segment primarily that engages in various (c) HENHDEEREIEREZ
types of investing activities including, inter alia, property &GRS EhaiERmES I
investment for rental income and treasury investment in AZERE REMEHZE
listed securities for dividend income and interest income. A& DA K BREAR B A K F B

N

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating ﬁi@?%j%m$%lx%%’ﬁa‘52¥

segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about A B RS R R IR (HEL R

resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment o 7 ERIRIR THARIE Al ¥y & 5 2 v Al 1B

performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit, ﬁaﬂa T b T3 48 58 & B B il s Al 5T &

which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted FE o KRR T A v Al B AN £2 [ B A

profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit AlmAl 2 st EEE— - EF I EST

before tax except that unallocated interest income, unallocated RADEFMEWA « KoEEAMIA &
other income and gains, net, corporate and other unallocated Uz F5E PEREMARASRITE -
depreciation, corporate and other unallocated expenses, and ENEMADEERSARMEER -
finance costs are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax recoverable, DHAEENBITRLERBEE  AJRE

pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, derivative BIE DEHER BEekERIRSE

financial assets, and other unallocated head office and corporate ETAEVKEE UAREMEKRSEAR
assets as these assets are managed on a group basis. HERAHEEE  BRERANEEEIZA
RIELHE o

Segment liabilities exclude derivative financial liabilities, interest- DEBETBETEVHAE  [MER

bearing bank borrowings, tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and 1TEE  EHFE BELEHEAaGE Kk

other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these EmiroiRifihit¥aeEd  RERAN
liabilities are managed on a group basis. SRETRARER -

There were no material intersegment sales and transfers during BRINBEFEWES Ko EEZHE

the current and prior years. REEE o

Rl X EEER AR — T FER 85
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4., OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 4., RETER(E)
(a) Operating segments (a) &EDE
Group REH
Integration and
Solutions Services Application Services Investments Total
SRRBAARRE R RE 2
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
“%-2F ZFF Z%-CF FF SRoF RF SRof R F
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$O000  HK§'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
Tén Thr TR TEr T TEr  TEx  TEn
(Restated)
(1)
Segment revenue: AHHA
Sales to external customers HETIAEE 124834 309978 80,011 79,489 1,863 1,742 206,708*  391,209*
Other income and gains, net AR &5 429 4909 5 19 (5100 9172 (760 142750
Total ) 125263 314887 80,016 79,683 1,353 10914 206,632 405484
Segment results PHER 1123 22,349 30,011 27,285 24,599 14,739 61,733 64,373
Reconciliation: H -
Unallocated interest income FARFSMA 9,193 6474
Unallocated other income and gains, net - RATEMMAR
et 433 30138
Corporate and other nallocated CERERAIERE
depreciation (170) (250)
Corporate and other unallocated expenses (M2 kA A RE R (19987)  (17.072)
Finance costs SRR (100) (545)
Profit before tax B ATER 51,102 56,493
Segment assets B8R 41,561 82,664 33,931 35,049 79,539 60,054 155,031 177767
Reconcillation: H%
Corporate and other unallocated assets (A2 R EMANBEE 330,048 346,251
Tofal assets EEeA 494079 524018
Segment liahilities po)- 49341 63530 32673 32989 609 580 82629 97099
Reconcillation: HE
Corporate and other unallocated liabilies 1% & &bk ARE & 11205 40,761
Total liabilities BERE 93834 137860

* This represents the consolidated revenue of HK$206,708,000 (2011:

HK$391,209,000) in the consolidated income statement.

A These comprise the consolidated other income and gains, net, of
HK$9,550,000 (2011: HK$24,262,000) in the consolidated income

statement.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 4. REFTER(HFE)
(a) Operating segments (continued) (a) REDI(E)
Group REH
Integration and
Solutions Services Application Services Investments Total
ERRBAARER ERRE ke g
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
“%-2F Z3F Z%-IF FF ZRofF CRF SRof R F
HK$'000  HK$000  HK§'000  HKSO000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$000
Thn T TEn Thn Thn Thn Tin Tian
Other segment information: EfpAHER :
Net fair value gains on investment Y EINTE] e
properties - - - - 16,610 9,068 16,610 9,068
Net fair value gains/(losses) an BATEEERAEL
financial assets at fair value AL A/
through profit or loss (FE)38 - - - - 6,262 (5,858) 6,262 (5,358)
Depreciation & 682 802 575 517 % 113 1,351 1,432
Corporate and other unallocated PEREMANERE
depreciation 170 250
1,521 1,682
Write-down of inventories to net FEHRENER L E
realisable value 291 - - - - - 291 -
Other material non-cash EEREREEE
incomel(expense) ftems, nett LOVAST):: o (145) 1920 6 230 - - (139) 2150
Capital expenditure** BRRR 914 34 646 465 - - 1,560 809
Corporate and other unallocated PEREBANE
capial expenditure BREY 191 62
1,751 871
8 Including impairment losses recognised in the consolidated income * BIERGRE RS RATER R B SR &
statement attributable to the integration and solutions services AR TS RIS 5 28 K FE A RIS 9 &
segment and application services segment of HK$145,000 (2011: Nil) Z R EEE 5 Bl A 145,000 T (=
and HK$53,000 (2011: HK$188,000), respectively, and impairment T——4F : &) R53,000FT(=F
losses reversed in the consolidated income statement attributable to ——%F : 188,000/ 70) ' LA KRR
the integration and solutions services segment and the application A W e 7R B B 2R B SR PR R R R T 2R
services segment of nil (2011: HK$1,920,000) and HK$59,000 (2011: AR 75 5> 3B K & FA AR %5 - S l £ (B /S
HK$418,000), respectively B(=ZZF——4 : 1,920,000% T) &
59,000/ 7t (=Z —— 4 : 418,000
PEIL) ©
i Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and o BEARAYZBEDE  BEREER
equipment. Eeo
Mg R EEAR AR T —EER
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Year ended 31 December 2012 HE=—F——F+=-HA=+—HILFE

4, OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 4., REHFHTER(E)
(b) Geographical information (b)) HEER
Group rEE
(i) Revenue from external customers (i)  FKEIIRESZIA
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
B FERE ke
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
8- —Z—% =ZB--f _T—% =ZB-Zf _T——F%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn THL Thx TEn THr THT
Segment revenue: ABBA
Sales to external customers BETHRZP 154,356 139,821 52,352 251,388 206,708 391,209
The revenue information is based on the locations of WABR T AR E R A
the customers. FHE o
(i) Non-current assets (i) FEmBEE
2012 2011
=F-—=F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Hong Kong BB 69,803 53,961
Mainland China R B A it 9,472 8,484
79,275 62,445
The non-current asset information is based on the locations IERBEEER IIZEEMEH
of the assets and excludes financial instruments. 25 BRWARGTRIBELA -
(c) Information about major customers () FEEFZER
Revenue from external customers individually amounting to REINAE P 2 WA E B AR5
10% or more of the Group’s total revenue: BB A10%3k A E ¢
For the year ended 31 December 2012, revenue from a HE_Z——F#+=-A=+—H
major customer of HK$50,874,000, individually amounting LEFE - REBE—REERZFPZK
to 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue, was derived A £50,874,0007% 7T+ 18 Bl A&
from the integration and solutions services segment. EEAWALIO%KAE - B
BIIRE SRR RDES ©
For the year ended 31 December 2011, revenues from three B2z F2——F+=-_A=+—H
major customers of HK$61,687,000, HK$58,301,000 and IEFE RE=ZRFTERFEZE
HK$39,862,000, individually amounting to 10% or more of Z WA 5 Rl A61,687,0005% It
the Group’s total revenue, were derived from the integration 58,301,000 & st & 39,862,000
and solutions services segment. BT RSB B A10% 3K A
- BESBETIRESEKKER
FERDES ©
ANNUAL REPORT 2012 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
aggregate of the invoiced value of goods sold, net of trade
discounts, returns and business tax, where applicable; fees earned
from the provision of system and network integration, IT solutions,
enterprise software applications, business process outsourcing,
e-business and related services; fees earned from the provision of
maintenance services; gross rental income earned from investment
properties; and interest income earned from treasury investments
during the year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net is as follows:

5. WA~ HtbW AR W35

WA (TRENASE B 2 &R B IHFEANHE
EmZBEREABNRESTN  RE
REEH(NER)  BERARRBERE
FARTS ~ BRABIBBRTT R - DERMN
FEM - ZBmiEIN - ETEHRIAM
RIBHRRZER - RURBERERRZ
ER  REMERRMZHE WAL
AN LEBR BRI MBWA -

WA~ B AR FEAMTAT

2012 2011
—E-=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Revenue A
Sale of computer networks and system HEBMAB R RGTA
platforms, and the provision of system and TR R4 R AR =R ARTS
network integration, IT solutions development BRI ERTRER R
and implementation, and related maintenance B A AR IR ERTS
services 124,834 309,978
Provision of enterprise software applications TR E B K AR R
and related operation outsourcing, business BB - EREMARINA -
process outsourcing and e-business, and B TE 5 RIEALIEE
related maintenance services IRE RS 80,011 79,489
Gross rental income from investment properties & &2 AL A EEE &
and interest income from treasury investments BIEIEE 2 M EUA 1,863 1,742
206,708 391,209
Other income and gains, net Hi AR Wz 55
Bank interest income ERITFIBUA 9,193 6,474
Dividend income from listed investments EmEEZREWA 953 554
Gain/(loss) on disposal of financial assets HER A FELERAR
at fair value through profit or loss 2B EEWRE(EE) (1,600) 255
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BRE K&
plant and equipment IHB 2 W= - 6,865
Gain on disposal of an investment property HEREYE 2 W - 73
Foreign exchange differences, net b =R TR 775 9,742
Others Hith 229 299
9,550 24,262

MR G REER AR T FFR
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Year ended 31 December 2012 & ZE=—ZE——F+=—A=+—RHILFE . .

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. PBRELADREF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REEZBRBADHEANZEME GEA)T
HI| BRI
2012 2011
—E-——F —ET——%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BizE FET FETT
Cost of inventories sold BEHETEMA 78,159 246,859
Cost of services provided TR ARG A A 34,801 36,954
Depreciation* £ 14 1,521 1,682
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, {HEWZE « BE LR EER
plant and equipment ZEE (M) 3 (6,865)
Gain on disposal of an investment property 1 &% &Y% 7 Wz - (73)
Minimum lease payments under operating 1R IEKE &R ERE 1 %
leases in respect of land and buildings BFEMzxERE508 6,275 4,745
Auditors’ remuneration ZERAMEN S 1,050 1,100
Employee benefit expense (excluding BERIAZ(TEEES
directors’ remuneration — note 8)*: < —FiE8)# :
Wages, salaries and allowances I8 #& k2 76,589 83,732
Equity-settled share-based payment IREEE AR DR
expense 395 745
Retirement benefit scheme RIREFET IR
contributions (defined contribution (FrftEtal)
schemes) 5,400 5,507
Less: Forfeited contributions# T R U e - (58)
Net retirement benefit scheme RN BIHTEE
contributions 5,400 5,449
82,384 89,926
Impairment of trade receivables U E 5 R RE 21 198 188
Write-down of inventories to net FEMEE TR FE
realisable value 291 —
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables #[al &L E 58 2R E 21 (59) (1,580)
Reversal of impairment of amounts due B EEW A NBFHIBRIE
from contract customers 23 - (758)
Reversal of trade receivables written off [l fEULEE 5 BR 4 - (227)
Reversal of impairment of amounts due B EIfEI A XIB P I8
from contract customers written off AR - (34)
Direct operating expenses (including AR 2B
repairs and maintenance) arising on BEEERY
rental-earning investment properties (BIEEBERRE) 99 4K
Fair value losses/(gains), net: DNFEEE (et )T
Financial assets at fair value through BATELER AR
profit or loss BB AE (6,262) 5,858
Investment properties KEYE 15 (16,610) (9,068)
Fair value losses/(gains) on derivative TEMBTIAZATE
financial instruments B8,/ (k)
— transactions not qualifying as hedges —TREREEHHZR S - 130
— settlement of derivative financial —REENTERBTA
instruments (130) (202)
Write-off of inventories FEM 596 =
Write-off of items of property, plant and W« R LR EIA B s
equipment 14 83 105
Rental income on investment properties less & &M S WA R BIZ LS
direct operating expenses of HK$99,000 f95299,0007%8 7T
(2011: HK$144,000) (ZZF——%F : 144,0007%7T) (1,469) (1,372)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R R 5 M (AR

Year ended 31 December 2012 HE—F——F+=-A=+—RHIFE

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED) 6. BRBANEF (&)

REFEAFTELS80008 T (= F——4F :
381,000/ 70 ) AR & a2 [ 358 KR
TERRAS A o

* Depreciation for the year of HK$158,000 (2011: HK$381,000) is included in =
“Cost of sales and services” on the face of the consolidated income statement.

# Inclusive of an amount of HK$34,801,000 (2011: HK$36,954,000) classified #
under “Cost of services provided” above

BESEAR LRI REREKA ] Z 8 E
34,801,000/ 7T (=& ——4F : 36,954,000
BT

R —FR=_F——F+=_R=+—
B - AT REMRAEEARRBERINEFI
Bl 2R R BRI TEKX o

# The amounts of forfeited contributions available to reduce the Group’s #
contributions to the retirement benefit schemes in future years were not
material as at 31 December 2012 and 2011.

FINANCE COSTS 7. EBiBEHR
2012 2011
=F—=F e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Interest on bank loans wholly repayable within BERRLEREBEEERE Y

five years IRITERZF B 100 545

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEME

FREEHMEBRBEETBELFRHIE161
FREBHMAERZMBRAFZS LT
MANT ERARRDEEWT

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to Section
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), is as follows:

Group
REE
2012 2011
—2-=F e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Fees: W
Executive directors HITES - -
Independent non-executive directors BN IFEHITES 450 450
450 450
Other emoluments: Hi4 :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMEEYR = 5,469 5,124
Bonuses* TEAL* 1,694 836
Equity-settled share-based payment expense* R A 4 & ARG D it FR A S # 238 312
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BIRFEFFT B 5K
(defined contribution scheme) (EEERETE) 42 36
7,443 6,308
7,893 6,758
B RREEBRAR —E - FEFER 91
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

7 3 o5 B ()
Year ended 31 December 2012 HE=—F——F+=-HA=+—RHIFE

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

Certain directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments which are
determined by the board of directors on a discretionary basis.

During the year and in prior years, certain directors were awarded restricted
shares of the Company, subject to certain vesting conditions, in respect of
their services to the Group, under the restricted share award scheme of
the Company, further details of which are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such restricted shares, which has been
recognised in the income statement over the vesting period, was determined
as at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for
the current year is included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

8.

EEME (&)

ETARREFAREDHEFENITET
ZIEAAFRR

RAFRFBEFE  REARBZ BRG]
Bein S2EN 8] - WNETHBIKEZRRT
ETEFORRERAEBPTIRHURGER
ARRERSIRD - ARRE—FFEHRY
TEMEMTE32 - ZEFREIBRHHIATFETD
R BT - YERGBHAERER
#R - Mt ANFERBHREZ BT E
EREXESMEHER -

(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIYFHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during FRN - I FBIIERITEEZ
the year were as follows: W
2012 2011
=F—=F —F—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Independent non-executive directors: BYIEMITES :
Ha Shu Tong BRE 150 150
Lee Kwok On, Matthew TH% 150 150
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRiE 150 150
450 450
Save as disclosed above, there were no other emoluments B EXHEEIN  RAFERBE
payable to the independent non-executive directors during AFEWEEMER TELIEH
the current and prior years. TESZME -
ANNUAL REPORT 2012 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B S o5 B (4]
Year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—E—_—F+_A=+—RHILFE .
8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 8. EEM(E)
(b) Executive directors () BITES
The fees and other emoluments paid to executive directors FR - INFROTESZTZ2HE R
during the year were as follows: BT :
Salaries, Equity-settled  Retirement
allowances share-hased benefit
and benefits payment scheme Total
in kind Bonuses expense contributions remuneration
BER U BIER
BYIRIE A XfAEX FEMMR MesE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THER THET FTiER THERr FTER
2012 —E-—F
Executive directors: HITEE -
Ng Cheung Shing RER
(“Mr. Ng”) (TREED 2,517 847 57 14 3,435
Leung King San, Sunny R 300 - - 14 314
Yan King Shun 2= 2,652 841 181 14 3,694
5,469 1,694 238 42 7,443
2011 —E——F
Executive directors: HTESE
Ng Cheung Shing RER 2,892 836 93 12 3,833
Leung King San, Sunny =] 300 = = 12 312
Yan King Shun == 1,932 - 219 12 2,163
5,124 836 312 36 6,308
The directors’ emoluments paid to Mr. Ng included a SN TFTREEZEEMBE
housing allowance of HK$2,052,000 (2011: HK$1,872,000) /2,052,000 L ( — & ——4F :
which was remunerated by way of rental reimbursement. 1,872,000 7T ) 2 (£ 528 - LATE
The rentals of the related property were paid directly by Mr. SEEBZHAAIMT  c BEWEL
Ng to the landlord, which is a company jointly controlled by HemREEEES I TEE
Mr. Ng and one of his family members. MizxFAIRHREERKES
— BRI B HRESI 2 A F] °
There was no arrangement under which a director waived RAFERBAEFE EBUE
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the current and WEXFRBERETAME 2 LHE -
prior years.

MR G REER AR T FFR 93
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BARE R M (4R

Year ended 31 December 2012 HE=—F——F+=-HA=+—RHIFE

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. LERESHFHMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included two FRN AAE=STHEEREME(Z
(2011: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in E——F WMBP)ESE KE2MEH
note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining three IBEHN L MIEE8 - FRNHHB =L (==
(2011: three) non director, highest paid employees for the year are —F =R )REaTMEEEREREZ
as follows: S FFIEHBAT ¢
Group
EE
2012 2011
= —F—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAIT
Salaries and allowances e RER 3,271 3,025
Equity-settled share-based payment expense PR 45 B LARR (015t B =2 44 103
Bonuses TEAL 433 590
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRERNETEIEEFR
(defined contribution schemes) (EREHKETE)) 41 62
3,789 3,780

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

FHBNFATHER 2 &= MEFERE
B2 AT :

Number of employees

BEAH
2012 2011
=F—=F —F—F
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/87T %1,500,000/ 7 3 3

During the year and in prior years, restricted shares of the
Company, subject to certain vesting conditions, were awarded
to three non-director highest paid employees in respect of his
services to the Group, under the restricted share award scheme
of the Company, further details of which are set out in note 32 to
the financial statements. The fair value of such restricted shares,
which has been recognised in the income statement over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the
amount included in the financial statements for the current year
is included in the above non-director, highest paid employees’
remuneration disclosures.
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Year ended 31 December 2012 HE—F——F+=-A=+—RHIFE

10.

INCOME TAX 10. A%
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% BRNEHRIREAFEARNBEELE
(2011: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong ZfERHERBE FIZ B K 16.5% (= F
Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have jii : 16'§%M}E‘lﬁﬁ§ﬁ i Eﬁ?f‘ﬁ@ﬁ%
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/ E%%RE@Z?\IE??%K,%%%%%%
jurisdictions in which the Group operates. PSR /PRI 2 RATRRE S -
2012 2011
—E-=fF —T——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FH&T
(Restated)
(&31))
Group: REE :
Current — Hong Kong BIHA— &8
Charge for the year FRFIEZ H 3,830 4,185
Overprovision in prior years FFEZIREME (674) -
Current — Elsewhere BIHR — H fib3th[=
Charge for the year FARFIES H 2,771 1,568
Overprovision in prior years FFEZIREE (1,955) (350)
Deferred (note 29) TRIE (HI7E29) 128 14
Total tax charge for the year FABIES HAERE 4,100 5,517

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the statutory profits tax rate for Hong Kong in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are operating/domiciled to the

tax charge at the effective tax rate is as follows:

ERARNEARB RERES B A RE
2/ E M EE 2 EEMEHEAER
BEBANEHN 2 IR H - BRERS
KA EZ RSO ERAT ¢

MR G REER AR T FFR
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7 3 o5 B ()
Year ended 31 December 2012 HE=—F——F+=-HA=+—RHIFE

10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

11.

10. FriS#i(&)

Group AEE
2012 2011
—B—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAIT
(Restated)
(&%)

Profit before tax MR EL BT A 51,102 56,493
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate BEBEEREL6.5%

of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) —T——%:165%)

HE 7 RiE 8,432 9,321

Higher tax rates for overseas subsidiaries TN B R Rl = R R 887 483
Adjustments in respect of current tax SLAE G E BN AR

of previous periods {EH A% (2,629) (350)
Income not subject to tax BEREUBA (3,403) (2,906)
Expenses not deductible for tax BRI 606 826
Tax losses utilised from previous periods BB iEEHIRE 2 T EE (1,486) (2,112)
Others EH 1,693 255
Tax charge at the Group's effective tax rate REBKERHRERTEZ

BIE ST 4,100 5,517

Under the income tax laws of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"), enterprises are subject to corporate income tax (“CIT”)
generally at a rate of 25% (2011: 25%). In the prior year, certain
of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries operating in specific development
zones of the PRC were granted a preferential CIT rate of 24% by

relevant tax authorities.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent for the
year ended 31 December 2012 includes a profit of HK$27,000
(2011: loss of HK$2,000) which has been dealt with in the

financial statements of the Company (note 33(b)).

ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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11.

BEBEREARKLME(THE])FRFEHR
& BR-REAERDR(ZF——F
25% ) Z RN EERSH ([ BEAMR
B - 2F - AEERTESERE
BEEsETHENEAREBBRG
HWERTEEEEMSHE24% -

FAFER AEGRR

HE-ZT——F+-A=1+—HI%F
B BRREME ARGHRA ST EER
F27,000/ (= ——F : EE2,000
BT ERAQRTBREAE (M
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Year ended 31 December 2012 & E=—E——F+ A =+—HILFE .

12. DIVIDENDS 12. RE
2012 2011
—F-=F —F—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Interim — HK$0.06 (2011: HK$0.06) o H — SRR R AR
per ordinary share 0.06TL(ZF——4F :
0.06/87T) 14,817 14,926
Less: Dividend for shares held under the o REBEARQ R ARG
Company’s restricted share award BENET 23S 2 i)
scheme FTiEiR & (334) (282)
14,483 14,644
Proposed final — HK$0.06 (2011: HK$0.07) Bk R — SR E A
per ordinary share 0.06BTT(=ZF——F :
0.077%87T) 14,717 17,223
Less: Dividend for shares held under the B ARE AN B R SR
Company’s restricted share award HREENET SR A 2R
scheme PSR & (273) (328)
14,444 16,895
Proposed special — HK$0.03 (2011: Nil) BRI — A E B
per ordinary share 0.038T(ZZF——%F : ) 7,359 =
Less: Dividend for shares held under the B IR A BA R HI AR
Company’s restricted share award RENET 2 2D
scheme SRR & (137) -
7,222 -
36,149 31,5639

The proposed final and special dividends for the year is subject
to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

R -

MR G REER AR ===

REE 2 FHRA B R A5 BIBLE AR AR
ARRNEERRBFEASHIER - 75
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Year ended 31 December 2012 HE=—F——F+=-HA=+—RHIFE

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY 13. BAFEERKRRELERER

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
241,079,575 (2011: 244,127,666) in issue during the year, as
adjusted to exclude the shares held under the restricted share

award scheme of the Company.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares granted under
the share option schemes of the Company and the deemed vesting
of all dilutive restricted shares of the Company awarded under

BRERZFSERES QR TR
R EGEF R R FEANBE BT R
h0kE S 25 80241,079,575 % ( = F — —
F 1 244,127,666 ) 5t E - EEH
B PASIBR AR BA IR S 22 B =t 2
B TNATERD o

BREEANSBRIRES AR EARK
BREEFRGENAE - sTEMAZE
BN P B AT B EREANRF A
RzFRBBETERREE - ARRKRR
RATARBEA R B BT 8% h 2 &
S ERRBR BT ITESILRE
A RARBA R BB R HI A7 SRRt 8%
th 2 B ELEEE R R A IR I R AR 1
RER  ARFCREETABTZE
BRI -

the restricted share award scheme of the Company into ordinary

shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based

on:

Earnings

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent.

T E TR ER RS B A AT A BRI
™

87

BREANBERNEG AR EER
BREE N E -

Shares & 13
Number of shares
ik 4=
2012 2011
—E-=F —T——fF
Weighted average number of ordinary shares HEGIRERZEF
in issue during the year used in the basic FrARFERNE 2T
earnings per share calculation - E AR HNAE S 3 241,079,575 244,127,666
Effect of dilution — weighted average number of — #EEE/ 2 — L i@AR HIRE
ordinary shares: I8
Restricted shares awarded under the R R B R HIAZ D
Company’s restricted share award RN ETEIR L 2
scheme ARl 2,007,876 2,529,245
243,087,451 246,656,911
ANNUAL REPORT 2012 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B S o5 B (4]
Year ended 31 December 2012 #Z=FE——F+=-A=+—HILFZ .
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% > BEKRFRE
Group REE
Leasehold Computer Furniture,
[and and Leasehold equipment fixtures and Motor
huildings ~ improvements and software  other equipment vehicles Total
HELi g ERRE KA £ER
REF S REk U A& fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThT Thr ThT ThT Thr Thr
31 December 2012 —E--E+-A=1-H
At 31 December 2011 and at RZE- ¢+ FE + AR
1 January 2012: —E-F-f
Cost A 4213 2174 2473 1,581 983 31,424
Accumulated depreciation Zithe (505) (2,079) (21,288) (1,341) (551) (25,764)
Net carrying amount FEHE 3,708 % 1,18 20 43 5,660
At 1 January 2012, net of R-E——%-F-R"
accumulated depreciation il e 3708 % 1,185 20 43 5,660
Additions e - - 1,660 91 - 1,751
Disposals hrt= - - - 6) - (6)
Write-off i3 - - (83) - - (83)
Depreciation provided duringthe year ~ EfifE& (%) (66) (1,075) (104) (183) (1,521)
Exchange realignment i - 1 74 1 3 79
At 31 December 2012, net of R-E-——&£+-fA=1-RH"
accumulated depreciation TRE:E 3615 30 1,761 22 252 5,880
At 31 December 2012: RE——F+-fA=1-8:
Cost A 4213 2,180 22,110 1,628 %6 31,117
Accumulated depreciation ZithiE (598) (2,150) (20349) (1,406) (734) (25,237)
Net carrying amount FEHE 3615 30 1,761 22 252 5,880

M RGREERA —E - FER 99
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Year ended 31 December 2012 HE=—F——F+=-HA=+—RHIFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

100

14. 9% -~ B&ER&E (&)

Group (continued) REE ()
Leasehold Computer Furniture,
[and and Leasehold equipment fixtures and Maotor
huildings ~ improvements and software  other equipment vehicles Total
RELH HE EKRE B £ER
REF NELE R&# EthtE e fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn Tn T T T
31 December 2011 —E--£+ZA=1-A
At 1 January 2011 RZF——%-A-F:
Cost AR 4710 2,280 21,777 1435 2,300 32,502
Accumulated depreciation LS (523) (2,190) (20133) (1,139) (868) (24,853)
Net carrying amaunt FHE 4187 )] 1,644 2% 1432 7,649
At 1 January 2011, net of RZF——%-A-F
accumulated depreciation NRE:E 4187 90 1,644 2% 1432 7,649
Additions e - 144 702 25 - 871
Disposals k= (379 - - - (761) (1,140)
Write-off i = (105) = - - (105)
Depreciation provided during the year ERRERE (100) (34) (1,166) (84) (298) (1682)
Exchange realignment 5 A% - - 5 3 59 67
At 31 December 2011, net of RE—&+-f=+-R"
accumulated depreciation Th2E 3708 % 118 240 43 5,660
At 31 December 2011: RE—E+-f=1-R:
Cost A 4213 2174 2473 1581 983 31,424
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (505) (2,079 (21,283) (1,341) (551) (25,764)
Net carrying amaunt FHE 3,708 % 1,185 20 43 5,660

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings are situated in Mainland

China and are held under long term leases.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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Year ended 31 December 2012 HE—F——F+=-A=+—RHIFE

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. BEYE
Group AEE

2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FTHERT TR
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HZErE 30,972 32,278
Disposal HE - (10,374)
Net gain from a fair value adjustment ~ AF(EHE 7 Yz B5E 6 16,610 9,068
Carrying amount at 31 December Wt+—A=+—HZzKaE 47,582 30,972

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Hong Kong and
Mainland China and are held under the following lease terms:

REBMZREMERUNREERTEAM
WARBIA T HEF RS -

2012 2011
—E-CF —T——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Hong Kong: B

Long term leases KHHEE 42,800 26,300

Mainland China: R R A D,
Medium term leases FREATR S 2,650 2,300
Long term leases KHEE 2,132 1,872
4,782 4,172
47,582 30,972

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31 December
2012 by Landscope Surveyors Limited, independent professionally
qualified valuers, at HK$47,582,000 on an open market, existing
use basis. The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further summary details of which are
included in note 34(a) to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2012, one of the Group’s investment properties
situated in Hong Kong with a carrying value of approximately
HK$42,800,000 (2011: HK$26,800,000) was pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 28).

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are
included on page 146.

MR G REER AR

R-E——F+-A=+—0H K&E
ZEREMERBLEXS BRMEERME
HRAEMITARHMSIRIRE AREE
B4 /547,582,000 T - REWFER
BEREHELETE=D - FEREH
KUK M FE34() °

R-ZEBE—=—F+=-—A=+—H ' K&
EURBBZHER —BREAMER®T
B 49 442,800,000/ (=T ——4F :
26,800,000/8 70 ) EEAES R T ARE
B2z —RRTRE 2 iR (HE28) -

AEEREMEZE - FFBERE
1468 -
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Year ended 31 December 2012 & ZE=—ZE——F+=—A=+—RHILFE . .
16. GOODWILL 16. &
Group AEE
HK$'000
FAT
31 December 2011 R-ZE——F+=-HA=+—8
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2011 and R—E——F—H—BE=_F—F
31 December 2011 T A=FT—HZAAKERE 25,813
HK$'000
FATT
31 December 2012 R-ZE——-—F+=-A=+—8H
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2012 and RZEBE——F—H—HKZ= —F
31 December 2012 +ZA=+— EZWZF&EE@TE 25,813

I S MKR T2 AP - NEEE
RABREMBGRELNEIR BRME

As further detailed in note 2.4 to the financial statements,
the Group applied the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 that

permitted goodwill in respect of business combinations which B RN —_EE—FHELEERH
occurred prior to 2001 to remain eliminated against consolidated ERE T 2B G ERE S FEELEE -

reserves.

R-EE—FRAEHEBHEAE30
SR AT RN B A R A RN A
HEZEBLE W-F——FR-

The amount of goodwill remaining in consolidated reserves, arising
from the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to the adoption of SSAP
30 in 2001, was HK$7,227,000 as at 31 December 2011 and

102

2012. The amount of goodwill is stated at its cost less cumulative
impairment of HK$3,890,000.

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been
allocated to the following cash-generating units, which are
reportable segments, for impairment testing:

° Application services cash-generating unit; and
o Integration and solutions services cash-generating unit.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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Year ended 31 December 2012 HE—F——F+=-A=+—RHIFE

16. GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 16. BHE (&)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each of the cash-
generating units are follows:

BAERERH (&)
NEEESRSEABN ZEREEL
T

Integration and

Application Services Solutions Services Total
P& P BR s SR RBRS RRH @5t
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
=F-=F ZF—F ZB--F _F—F ZB--F T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT THET FAT THERT FAT
Carrying amount of goodwill FZEERE(E 23,790 23,790 2,023 2,023 25,813 25,813
Application services cash-generating unit JEARBH 2 EEFN
The recoverable amount of the application services cash- ERRBREEELEEM 2 AIREISTEE
generating unit has been determined based on a value in use RIEFEREEMETE - ZEAEERF

calculation using cash flow projections approved by senior
management covering a five-year period and extrapolated with a
zero percentage growth rate. The discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 10% (2011: 10%) and the cash flow projections
are determined based on past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development.

Integration and solutions services cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the integration and solutions services
cash-generating unit has also been determined based on a value
in use calculation using cash flow projections approved by senior
management covering a five-year period and extrapolated with a
zero percentage growth rate. The discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 10% (2011: 10%) and the cash flow projections
are determined based on past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
application services and integration and solutions services cash-
generating units for 31 December 2012 and 31 December
2011. The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted revenue — The basis used to determine the value assigned
to the budgeted revenue is the revenue achieved in the year
immediately before the budget year, adjusting for management’s
expected change in market demand and customer base.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant cash-generating units.

R RSB AR A

AeREREMtENTIFReRER
ARZADLEREKAHEEME -
ReRERAMAMRESI0N(=F
——%F :10%) - MR REFAIRE
BERBLEEEHMSER 2AHM
B -
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. HbEREEE
Group NEE
Deferred
development
costs
IEFE B 3 AR
HK$'000
T
31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 R-EBE——F+-A=+—HK
—E——+=ZA=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011, —F——%F—HF—Q8 Z—%—F
1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012, net of +—A=+t-H8 -ZZE——F—AF—HBK
accumulated amortisation and impairment —E——Ft+_A=t—HZKAK
(30Bk R5THEESE KR ETR) =
At 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011: R-EBE——F+-_A=+—HBK
—E—F+—RA=+—H":
Cost AR 13,026
Accumulated amortisation and impairment Kt MORE (13,026)
Net carrying amount BREFHE =
18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RMIBRARZRE
Company
KA E
2012 2011
—E--F —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT BT
Unlisted investments, at cost JELEMIRE - KA 45,633 45,633
Due from subsidiaries JE U B A =) IR 193,807 224,598
239,440 270,231
Impairment* RE* (91,643) (91,643)
147,797 178,588
o An impairment was recognised for certain unlisted investments/amounts due * RBEFE  HRZEFRE RRHER
from subsidiaries in prior years because the recoverable amounts of these B Z e SR ENERRE - ?ﬂEWL%
investments/amounts due from subsidiaries were lower than their carrying FIELTRE /FEUR T BB A 7 5k B RER IR
amounts. There was no change in the impairment amounts during the current B o BERERNFARBEFEIWEEES o
year and the prior year.
The amounts due from subsidiaries included in the Company’s LA EEF AR R RRKTE A R E 2 UK
interests in subsidiaries above are unsecured, interest-free and WEARFIEAEER « &8 RIERE
have no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the directors, RN - EFRE @ RTHEHREAER
these balances are considered as quasi-equity investments in the M AR 2 FERRAIGE o

subsidiaries.
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18. RB AR 2RE (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FTEMBRARZFIBHT ¢

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued Percentage of equity
registration share capital/ attributable to
Name and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
HEMEL, BRIRE/ RN FEERA
A% R E B EMERZHE EREA TEEK
2012 2011
—%--f 3 —F
Apex Consulting Services Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 Provision of human resources
B HK$2,500,000 management and product
LRk development services
2,500,000/ 7T REANEREERER
2 PR 75
Computer And Technologies British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
(BVI) Limited Hong Kong US$1,000 REER
RERLEE /B LmAR1,0005 T
Computer And Technologies Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Provision of IT solutions
International Limited a5 Non-voting deferred** development and
M RGERAF HK$5,000,000 implementation services,
L@koBT investment holding
ERZERT and treasury
5,000,000/ 7T REEARBERAARER
REMRS - REERR
EBRE
Computer And Technologies Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100  Provision of system and
Integration Limited B LTiRkoB T network integration
R ENERA services
R RS R A R SR
Computer & Technologies PRC/Mainland China US$200,000 100 100  Trading of computer networks
International Trading (Shanghai) & /R EIRH 200,000%7T and system platforms
Company Limited* ERBEREARTAES
RERGERTE/ BRE S
(L&) ERARY
Computer & Technologies PRC/Mainland China US$3,500,000 100 100 Provision of system and
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.# /R E A, 3,500,000 7T network integration
EEHEERRGBR AR services
R RS R A B SR
Computer & Technologies British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 100 100 Investment holding and
Investment Limited Hong Kong LTRiR1IET treasury investments
RERLEE /B REZRRERRE
C&T (Guangzhou) Investment Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100  Property holding
Limited BE ERR2E T RENE
R (BMN) REFRAF]
R RSB AR A A T FEWR
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

106

18. RIBLQTZKRE (&)

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued Percentage of equity
registration share capital/ attributable to
Name and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
A&, ERTRE/ AN FEERA
A% TR E BN HEMERZHE BREAL TEEK
2012 2011
—%--f 2%
C&T (Hong Kong) Investment British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 100 100 Property holding
Limited Hong Kong LRERIET BEME
B (B8 ) REFR AR RERUEE /B
C&T (Nanjing) Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100  Property holding
R (AR REBRAA 90 Liamko# T SRZERIES
C&T (Shanghai) Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100  Property holding
(8 REFR AR BE Lmk2BT SRR YES
Computer And Technologies Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 Provision of IT solutions
Solutions Limited B8 HK$10,000 development and
RS AR AR TR implementation services
10,000/ 7T REEARREATRER
RE RS
Computer & Technologies Solutions PRC/Mainland China US$1,128,000 100 100 Provision of IT solutions
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.# mE /R E R 1,128,000% T development and
R EAEORI) AR A implementation services
REEARREATRER
RE RS
Global e-Business Services (BVI)  British Virgin Islands/ Class A US$1,600 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong Class B US$400 REAER
RRRUHE/BE A$E1,60057T
B#E400%TT
Global e-Business Services Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100  Provision of enterprise
BRETHERBERAR ) HK$1,010,000 software applications
Tk services
1,010,000%7T RECERERRS
Global e-Trading Services Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100  Provision of e-business
EESREERAT B HK$2,501,000 related services, including
AR government electronic
2,501,000/ 7T trading services
REEFE S ABRY -
BEBNETE RS
IPL Research Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 100  Provision of enterprise
) Non-voting deferred** software applications
HK$300,000 and related operation
EAIR100787T outsourcing services
BRFERIE RS TR R
300,000/ 7T LEIMIRRTS
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

18. RIBLTZIRE (&)

Place of Nominal value

incorporation/ of issued Percentage of equity

registration share capital/ attributable to
Name and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities

R AT BRIRE/ AN FEERA
8 Tk E D AMERZEE BxEot TEEK

2012 2011
—%--fF T —F
Waywin Limited British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary US$10,000 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong A% 10,0005 T AR

RERLEE /B
Y&A Professional Services Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 99.993 99.993  Provision of IT solutions
FEEBRERBERAER AR a5 HK$2,169,000 development and

AR implementation services
2,169,000/ 7T R AR AN R R
Btk

LB EER AR PRC/Mainland China Ordinary 100 100 Provision of enterprise

HE/ US$450,000 software applications and

L related operation
450,000 T outsourcing services
RECETHERRIEE
EEINIRTS
i The subsidiary is registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture under PRC # ZM B AR DRER AR AR IIEE
law. o
i The subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under # ZEM B A B AR B B R ARINETE
PRC law. BE o

*k

> REWFAAEERE 2 ERFERTERH
BEZ AR ZHER - MRS AU
EARRASBERHEEARTIAE L
BREZHER - MHTBRRIER - EERMDF
BAERNEBRFA AL SRE BERUER
4 #£1,000,000,000/8 T4 * HEEREE o

The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Group, carry no
rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general
meeting. In the winding-up of the subsidiaries, the holders of the deferred
shares carry the rights to receive a return of capital after the holders of the
ordinary shares have received a sum of HK$1,000,000,000 per ordinary
share.

% Computer And Technologies (BVI)
Limited4h - BT BB A RHHAR
AIMERA -

Except for Computer And Technologies (BVI) Limited, all of the
above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

FREJNHEEARGUAEEFAE
RENEEZE  BRASEEERE
EXBOIHAKEBRBEERZIA
REMB AR - EERSFIIEAMHB
RAZEMESREBNILE

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group or of particular importance to the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 19. JHHERE
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—F—=F —F—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Club membership debenture, at fair value eMEEESs  ZATE 2,100 2,000
During the year, the gross gain in respect of the Group’s available- FR - REMEEE AR AEE R
for-sale investment recognised in other comprehensive income HEERE B E100,0008 (==
amounted to HK$100,000 (2011: HK$150,000). ——% : 150,000/&7T) °
The fair value of the club membership debenture is based on EEREES 2 AFEIATREME
available market prices. T8 -
20. INVENTORIES 20. 78
Group
rEH
2012 2011
- —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Work in progress ERLG 11,300 12,431
21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21. EWE SRR EWVERE
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—E——fF —ET——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Trade and bills receivables FEUNE 5 8RR R BN & 28,854 69,110
Impairment RE (1,591) (1,495)
27,263 67,615
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21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

For system integration projects and the provision of maintenance
services and software development services, the Group’s trading
terms with its customers vary from contract to contract or
depending on the specific arrangements with individual customers,
and may include cash on delivery, advance payment and on
credit. For those customers who trade on credit, the overall credit
period is generally within 120 days, except for certain projects
with longer implementation schedules where the period may
extend beyond 120 days, or may be extended for major or specific
customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding trade receivables and overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances. Trade
and bills receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of
provisions, is as follows:

21. BRESZRREERREE(FE)

EFSENAE - REERE RS LK
RERGNS  ARERETFZES
fiR R A FEAE Al & #0A8 FR2ERIFF 2
REZBME - AJRERBERNR - B
TR « ZFABRKREAETI

HZEP  EEREEH-KRIER
120X » HEMMEZIR R ETHRE - Al

FEEMAIERERBBI20K @ A=
BRRERFEREEY - A&EE—H
BIEIEHEREERKE SRR e
HERENTHENSARIELERS o A
SBEWES I EESRITE T AERmE
EHEMEENESE - BIRE ZEEN
R EWZ R B o
NREBRPEAEER - BWRE SRR LE
U 2= 5 1 5 22 B HA D AN BR BB 2 BR IR
DT :

Group
TEE
2012 2011
—E--F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Within 1 month —(EAR 17,432 31,108
1 to 3 months —Z==1@A4 6,932 31,008
4 to 6 months W EYNEPE 2,031 4,381
More than 6 months ~MEA A 868 1,118
27,263 67,615
The movements in the provision for impairment of trade JEWE SRR 2 RBEREZZ T -
receivables are as follows:
Group
TEH
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FBIT
At 1 January ®n—A—H 1,495 3,235
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) BHERREEE(H:E6) 198 188
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) B O AR A (5E6) (59) (1,580)
Amount written off as uncollectible M sH AT e Bl £ 58 (48) (378)
Exchange realignment b 5 B 5 30
At 31 December W+=—_A=+—H 1,591 1,495
Bt R E B R A A —E - FEFER
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21.

110

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade receivables
is a provision for individually impaired trade receivables of
HK$1,591,000 (2011: HK$1,495,000) with a carrying amount
before provision of HK$1,591,000 (2011: HK$1,495,000).

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to amounts that
were long outstanding and/or customers that were in financial
difficulties/in default and only a portion of the receivables is
expected to be recovered.

The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

21.

B E B R BN RE ()

PR E SRR R ERERELE
AT BREE &1,591,0008 o (= &E——
£ 1 1,495,000/ 7t ) 2 Bl B 5 A FE Uk
Z SR EH 2 B #1,591,000/8 T (=
T——4F : 1,495,000/ 7T) °

18 5 2 BE W E 5 R B R B R AN 3R
BN REHPBRREREZEFPE
B - TAERR gE UM BED oy FEURIA o

RIS ARME 2 FEUE 5 BRI FE W R
RIRERDOMTAAT

Group

rEE
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Neither past due nor impaired A BRI E 20,361 32,579
Less than 1 month past due B DR —1E A 2,811 21,268
1 to 3 months past due BH—==EA 2,043 8,495
4 10 6 months past due wEAPY 2= A A 1,273 4,155
Over 6 months past due NME A 775 1,118
27,263 67,615

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
number of diversified customers, including certain departments/
units of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“HKSAR"), for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good reputation
and/or have a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. FMNFIE - B REMEKRIR

Group Company
REME ¥ /N
2012 2011 2012 2011
=F-=F —FT—F =F-=F =—FT—F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT T FHET FA&TT
Prepayments AR 1,920 2,020 255 256
Deposits and other Ee REMEY
receivables | 4,122 4,293 - -
6,042 6,313 255 256
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The L EEREaRNNIRRE - BER
financial assets included in the above balances that were not SR 2 RIBE Y S E E T BN
impaired relate to receivables for which there was no recent history IR GC8k 2 FEGRIBE R -
of default.
23. CONTRACTS FOR SERVICES 23. RIEEH
Group
REH
2012 2011
—B-=F %
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits ESBEEESYKAME#ER
less recognised losses to date Y FRL B HERR S 18 233,871 360,825
Less: Progress billings B IREER TR (233,031) (359,845)
840 980
Gross amounts due from contract customers A AR ERIBEEE 5,350 8,939
Impairment JRE (1,999) (4,940)
3,351 3,999
Gross amounts due to contract customers JERt & #H B E RIS (2,511) (3,019)
840 980
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23. CONTRACTS FOR SERVICES (CONTINUED)

112

The movements in the provision for impairment of amounts due

23. RBEH(HE)

BRENEPRBRERE ZESHM

from contract customers are as follows: T

Group

rEE
2012 2011
=F-=F —F—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
At 1 January n—HA—H 4,940 5,698
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) B e EEE (H5E6) - (758)
Amount written off as uncollectible hEH AT el Bl e R (2,941) =
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 1,999 4,940

Included in the above provision for impairment of amounts
due from contract customers is a provision for individually
impaired contract receivable amounts of HK$1,999,000 (2011:
HK$4,940,000) with a carrying amount of HK$1,999,000 (2011:
HK$5,278,000). The individually impaired contract receivables
relate to amounts that are long outstanding and the receivables are
not expected to be fully recoverable.

Amounts due from contract customers that were not impaired were
not past due and relate to a number of independent customers
that have a good track record/relationship with the Group and/
or for whom there was no recent history of default. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.
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24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFITOR 24, ATV ELES ARCHKEE
LOSS

Group
rEH
2012 2011
=F-=F —F——4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHR FABT
Listed debt investments, at market value EmEE 2 FTEBFRE 11,109 3,187
Listed equity investments in Hong Kong, EhMEEZEE EMRA
at market value K& 14,933 20,100
26,042 23,287
Portion classified as current assets SDERRBEERD (17,487) (20,100)
Portion classified as non-current assets DB AIERIEEZ D 8,555 3,187
The listed debt investments were designated upon initial RN EMEBIEE TRIERE BB EE
recognition as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as RIFERBEZAFEEEEE RTHE
they are managed and their performance are evaluated on a fair ] MR VIR ERNER T AIZATE
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management LR ARCHKEE  MBHEZSFER
and investment strategy, and information about the investments is BB NEEBAREERAER 2 E
provided on that basis to the Group’s key management personnel. ERANBRHE RZZE—Z=—F+=A4
Listed debt investment classified as current assets at 31 December =t B2EARBEEZ ETEKEK
2012 is a listed debt with maturity date fall within one year from éi%@#ﬁ%/ﬁﬁf’ﬁ%ﬁ H st —F R EIE]
the end of the reporting period. 2 ETER o
The listed equity investments included under current assets at 31 FARZE——FER =T —Z—F+=H
December 2011 and 2012 were classified as held for trading. = t—B2nBEEs EMRAEET)

DRBHEEE -
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED BANK 25.

ReRkSRARSEEURCTER

DEPOSITS BITEX
Group Company
X5E N
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--F T —E-CF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL AT FERT AL
Cash and bank balances RE LR TaEeA 119,440 70,774 1,651 4116
Time deposits EHER 215,463 272,837 - =
334,903 343,611 1,651 4116
Less: Pledged time deposits for ~ Jii : BtSRITRAVRE /HE(R
performance bonds/ BEREHER
guarantees issued by
banks (10,049) (31,774) - =
Pledged deposit for RTRIL 2B RE
banking facility granted ERER
by a bank * (50,048) - - -
Cash and cash equivalentsas ~ sTABIBHRAHREZEE R
stated in the statement of ZRBLEE
financial position 274,806 311,837 1,651 4116

*

The bank facility has not been utilised as at the end of the reporting period.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
and time deposits of the Group denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”) amounted to approximately HK$251,187,000 (2011:
HK$192,380,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies. However, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one and six months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances
and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.
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26. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26. EREZERMN HttESRER
PESTRIE

Group Company

AEE ¥ N
2012 2011 2012 2011
—F-=F T —F =B--F =T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FExT T
Trade payables B E SRR 33,037 52 555 =
Other payables E A EkIE 24,191 23,276 -
Accruals JE&HRIA 12,487 14,186 337 266
69,715 90,017 337 266

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the payment due date, is as follows:

RBEMREER - BNEZERFRE
HINR B 2 BRie DT AT

Group
REE
2012 2011
—F--F e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBx T
Current BNER 29,405 50,743
1 to 3 months —z=={@A4 3,020 1,569
4 t0 6 months U EYNEPE 109 106
Over 6 months ~NEA K E 503 137
33,037 52,555
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally B E SRS TEE - —MRIZ30KE
settled on 30-day terms. BRAES o
27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 27. PTEMKEIA
Group
REE
2012 2011
—g-—5 -—T—f
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fix FAT
Assets BE
Interest rate swaps I 2 4= B - 91
Liabilities afE
Forward currency contracts RHEEEL - 221
Bt R E B R A A T FEER
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27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 27. PTEMBTAE(E)
The main purpose of the above contracts and swaps entered AREBFIVA LAY RIEHZ EEHH
into by the Group was to manage the Group’s exchange rate and AEBRAEEmEY ZEXLFRRR -
interest rate exposures. Such forward currency contracts and IR HAE A 4 N F RS HANG JEFE F
interest rate swaps were not designated for hedge purposes and EEHHR ARG - THR A FERKIERARR ©
were measured at fair value through profit or loss.
The net fair value gains of these derivatives amounting FERXN - WETETEZ AFEKRZFRE
to HK$130,000 (2011: HK$72,000) were credited to the £130,000/8 7L (=& ——4F : 72,000/5
consolidated income statement during the year. JC) * Jist ABRA YRR A ©
28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 28. MEERITIEE
2012 2011
—E-Cf 25
Contractual Contractual
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
Group rEE BHIFIE(%) 35 TEL ANFIE%) il AT
Current BIE
Bank loans - secured RITEH - HHA - - - 110185 2012 22,526
Analysed into: B TIERHA -
Bank loans repayable: [EEERFITEN :
Within one year or on —ERFIREK

demand - note (a) —ffizE(a) - 22526
Notes: (R
(a) Bank loans as at 31 December 2011 contained a clause that gave the lender (@) RZZE——F+=ZA=+—HZRITEXRMH

the unconditional right to call the loans at any time and, accordingly, were B TE R EIREER ZRERER

classified as current liabilities as at 31 December 2011. Not taking into B AR —T——F+-RA=+—H&

account the repayment on-demand clause, based on the maturing terms of MEBVAED I o WA RIRESKER G

these loans, these loans were repayable within one year. BIRNEER2FH  WEERER—FAN

g -

(b)  Bank loans as at 31 December 2011 were denominated in United States () R=T—F+=-A=t+—HZRITEFNA

dollars. ETAHE °
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Year ended 31 December 2012 HZE —F—

28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 28.

Pledge of assets

The Group’s bank loans and other banking facilities are secured by:

“HE+-A=T—HIEE

M SRITEE ()

BEER

IR
(i) certain of the Group’s time deposits amounting to HK$60,097,000 at 31 (i)
December 2012 (2011: HK$31,774,000);
(ii) certain of the Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (ii)
amounting to HK$22,576,000 as at 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil); and
(iii) an investment property of the Group with a carrying value of HK$42,800,000 as (iii)

at 31 December 2012 (2011: HK$26,800,000).

29. DEFERRED TAX

AEBZBRITERREMBTEE

L BE B TR

AEER=_TE—=F+=-A=+—RHZH
F £ #3177 760,097,000/8 T (=T ——4F :
31,774,000/ 7¢)

AEBR-ZE—Z-F+-A=+—HZ
ETEREAFELBEARZUBEEAR
22,576,000/ (=T ——F : &) : &

AEBR-ZZ—Z—F+=ZA=+—HK
M 18 A 42,800,000 T (=& — — F
26,800,000/870 ) Z ZEME °

29. IRIEFIR

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are as FR - RERIBEAEZ2EEFHNT :
follows:
Deferred tax liahilities ELERBEEE
Group AEE
2012
—E—_F
Revaluation Withholding
of properties taxes Total
YIEE FEHNH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T T
(Restated)
(&%)
At 1 January 2012 R-_ZE——F—HF—H 421 496 917
Deferred tax charged to the income FARKERIRLZ
statement during the year* RIEFIE* 128 - 128
Gross deferred tax liabilities at R-ZE——F+-A8
31 December 2012 =t+—BZELEH
IHAEBERE 549 496 1,045
Mg RGEEERA ZTE - FFR 117
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Year ended 31 December 2012 HE=—F——F+=-HA=+—RHIFE

29. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

118

29. RFERLE ()

Deferred tax liabilities (continued) EEHEEEE)
Group (continued) NEE(E)
2011
—T——%F
Revaluation Withholding
of properties taxes Total
MEE R TEHIM #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHBT FHET
(Restated)
(E31)
At 1 January 2011 N_E——F—H—H 307 496 803
Deferred tax charged to the income ~ ERRUZEEIH
statement during the year* IRERLTE* 114 - 114
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 31 RZE——F
December 2011 +ZA=+—RH2
BERIA B B 421 496 917
* Total net deferred tax charged to the income statement during the year * FRARWRERINBZ FIRIETRIBEES

amounted to HK$128,000 (2011 restated: HK$114,000) (note 10).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unrecognised tax
losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$1,471,000 (2011:
HK$10,479,000), subject to the agreement by the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Department, that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and/or due to the
unpredictability of future taxable profit streams of the companies in
which the losses arose, and it is currently not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised.
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128,000 (=T ——F 4 E75 : 114,000
& 7T) (Fi3E10) °

RBERREER  AEEREBEAL
RIERTRIEEE41,471,0008 (=
——4F : 10,479,000/8 7T ) AR HA
WHEEBBRAR 2 RRERTERF] -
ERFEBTERRY - BRZEEE
REEE—EBBATHREEEZNBAR
5/ SRR KT B A )R R E R
W A SRR T3 8 1 A] TR A K 3R B 3R AN
NI BE A FE =R Bt A1) AT AR VE K S5 7 745 s
B MR ZEEERRELERIEE
E °



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B 7 S o5 B (4]
Year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE—F——F+=-A=+—RHIFE

29. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 29. IRIEHIIE(4])
Deferred tax liabilities (continued) EER IS E(E)
Group (continued) AEE (&)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group’s
subsidiaries established in the Mainland China, the applicable
rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

At the end of the reporting period, in respect of certain of
subsidiaries of the Group established in Mainland China, no
deferred tax has been recognised for withholding taxes that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding taxes. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, it
is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings
in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland
China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately HK$1,296,000 at 31 December 2012 (2011:
HK$1,033,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

R RSB AR A

RIBHPBEBEMETL - NP BEAHAK
M ZINEREABIMIEETIRRERE
RIO% AR RGN - BARED =
TETNF-A-ARER  WERRZ
ERLFT A=+ BZEMELR
A o R B EINGIRE & RDA
R ERBB R - AT RAREZ
BB R o AREE R T B AL 2
BARERZRERS5%E10% ° FHt -
B-TZN\F-A—HE AEEEHR
& B AR L 2 T A R P E A
ENED k2 B SN TRIOR ©

RREHEAER  AEBLERER
FERHA S 2 B/ TH B A R AEHE
AN TEIN TR 5 T FE A 2 TR T AR T
FiE - ARBEBRA  RATAARR
L EH B AT T A REDRZERF)
R-ZE——F+-_A=+—8 - BEEs
Witz B RRIRERE B k=
A 1,296,000 T (2B ——F :
1,033,000/ 7T) °

AR S E R HBRIR R M E &
PSR

T FFR
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Year ended 31 December 2012 & ZE=—ZE——F+=—A=+—RHILFE . .

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. A
Shares 8l
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Authorised: SETERRA
1,000,000,000 (2011: 1,000,000,000) 1,000,000,0000/%
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each —T——%F:
1,000,000,0007% )
HRRMEEO.10E T2
Rl 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREBRRKA
245,288,198 (2011: 246,040,198) ordinary 245,288,198%
shares of HK$0.10 each (Z&—%:
246,040,1984%)
SHREE0.10%8 T2
LA 24,529 24,604
A summary of the movements in the Company’s issued ordinary AAREBITEBRA  BOEERK
share capital, share premium account and shares held under the RIEH R IR () 2R B R B 2 I &
restricted share award scheme is as follows: FoMEmT
Shares
held under
Share  the restricted
Number of Issued premium share award
shares in issue capital account scheme Total
REARH
BT BT B RGEBTE
RABE e BER BEZRA a5t
Notes HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
fis TAL TAL TAL TAL
At 1 January 2011 R=E—%-A-H 252,728,198 25273 38493 (6,405) 57,361
Repurchase of shares TG 30(a) (6,688,000) (669) - - (669)
Vesting of shares held under AR REE AT
the restricted share award scheme BhGE 3?2 - = = 1,229 1,229
At 31 December 2011 and R=E—%+-fA=1-H
at 1 January 2012 FR=E-—%-f-H 246,040,198 24,604 38493 (5,176) 57921
Repurchase of shares ) 30(b) (752,000) (75) - - (75)
Purchase of shares held under BEERIIGEA RE:E
the restricted share award scheme AN 2 = = = (1372) (1372)
Vesting of shares held under BRI REEET
the restricted share award scheme Rih%E 32 - - - 958 958
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—FE+-A=1+-H 245,288,198 24.529 38493 (5,590) 57432
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Year ended 31 December 2012 HE—ZT——F+—-HA=+—HIFE .
30. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 30. BRAS(#E)
Notes: BieE -
(@)  During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company repurchased its own (@ #HEZZ——F+-A=+—BLFERN "
ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange as follows: RNRA A REE SRS R H EmR 2 1BRAT ¢
Number of Aggregate
shares Highest price Lowest price consideration
repurchased paid per share paid per share paid
[EEhEST 28R
Month/year /8 BERAEE BEE% BIEER EERE
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT FHT
March 2011 —Z——F=H 2,158,000 1.89 1.81 3,970
April 2011 —ZT——FmA 1,052,000 1.90 1.88 1,997
May 2011 —T——%HA 716,000 1.89 1.84 1,341
June 2011 —ZT——F XA 44,000 1.83 1.82 80
September 2011 —T—FNA 366,000 151 1.49 555}
November 2011 —Z——%+—H 1,448,000 1.52 1.47 2,193
December 2011 —2—%+=A 904,000 1.60 1.52 1,403
6,688,000 11,539
The repurchased shares were cancelled and accordingly, the issued share FriEEIR M B - Bt - AAAZE
capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value of these shares 1TRR AN A It S5 B 49 2 TE 1B R > 49.669,00075
of HK$669,000. The premium paid on the repurchase of the shares of JC ° BB %10 BT 1+ & 10,870,000/ L E B
HK$10,870,000 was charged to the contributed surplus. ARERIOBR o
(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company repurchased its own (b)) HBEZZ——F+-A=1+—HILFER:
ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange as follows: RNRAPREE S S B K @A 2 BT ¢
Number of Aggregate
shares Highest price Lowest price consideration
repurchased paid per share paid per share paid
[EXRESTS [EXRESTS
Month/year £,/ BERAEE BEE% BIEER EERE
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT FHET
August 2012 —T=——F)\A 310,000 1.63 1.62 507
September 2012 —T——FNA 228,000 1.71 1.66 390
October 2012 —T——%+A 214,000 1.72 1.70 368
752,000 1,265
The repurchased shares were cancelled and accordingly, the issued share FriE IR B sESH - Bt - AR B 2B 81T
capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value of these shares BRA A F R D 2 E{ER 4> 75,0008 7T © B8
of HK$75,000. The premium paid on the repurchase of the shares of 5] §% {5 B -4 {8 1,190,000 7L E B A &
HK$1,190,000 was charged to the contributed surplus. FRIOBR o
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

31.

122

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option schemes and the share
options issued under the schemes are included in note 31 to the
financial statements.

Restricted shares

Details of the Company’s restricted share award scheme and the
restricted shares held under the scheme are included in note 32
to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company operates two share option schemes for the primary
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The
share option schemes entitle the holders of share options granted
under the scheme to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company
at any time during the exercisable periods of the options. Share
options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote
at shareholders’ meetings.

(a) Share option scheme adopted in 2002

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2002
Scheme”). Eligible participants of the 2002 Scheme include
the Company’s directors, including independent non-
executive directors, other employees of the Group, suppliers
of goods or services to the Group, customers of the Group,
the Company’s shareholders, and any non-controlling
shareholder in the Company’s subsidiaries. The 2002
Scheme became effective on 30 May 2002 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the 2002 Scheme
is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the 2002 Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

30.

31.

R (&)

B
B R R 8 MR IR A 8%
TR 2 SIS BN M 3R I FE3L ©

BREIR D
AN R B BRHIAK D SR ot B AR IR e 5T
EHE 2 AR HIRD 2 BRI B R
FIFFE32 ©

B E

ARRRRMRIREE S - TERH
RYAEEEBAAELERMZEER
SWERMHBNERE - ZFBRE
BT RHARBZ MR THERELZ
ATHERN - REBERENITERR -
RBARB 2 E B - BRAEL EXE
FAAEBR SRR A LIRE -

R-BT_FRMNZERETE
AARIBERN—EERETE
(=T =F5E]) - 2T =
FHEIZEER2HERIEAR
RER(REBYIERTES)
REBEMES - MASEHEE
EmdREHER  AEEE
F - ARRRREEARQRMBA
A ZEMIEEH KRR - ZFF
ZFFER T _FRA=T
BAR - LI BRIESITEEH
1&85] © BRIFHEI#E R Z B BT+
FRDABI °

(a)

BIEFE—ZSZE_F:rE  REEH
EREHZMATEERESE &
LA AEHEEITEREAARME
Al B 81T (D 2 10% ° RfE
fA+=—EAEE  REZZFZ=
FrERSAER2HEEREZ
BARER BT ZRMNEE xZh
AARMEREEZ B TR Z
1% o EAE— S HR L BERTE L
BRREASRENREAS £t
AE ©
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31.

——H+A=t—HLFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Share option scheme adopted in 2002 (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date
of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The
exercise period of the share options granted is determinable
by the directors, and commences after certain vesting period
and ends on a date which is not later than 10 years from the
date of offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
2002 Scheme, whichever is earlier.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of offer of the share options; and (ii) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer.

No share option of the Company was outstanding, granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year and
subsequent to the end of the reporting period under the
2002 Scheme.

R

R E(&)

(a)

EREEERAT

R-IEZS_FHEMNZBERETE
(#8)

RTIARRES - (THRBHI=E
ZRHRABEEEMHEALTE
A ENESBYIERNITES
HEE o BESN - IPAMER+ — 1@ B
MR FARREZRESKIBF L
ERITEEHHETMBEEAL
Z AT BB AR R R s AR R R AR
REzBEEZTRMN201% ' B
RafE R 2 2B (R IE A A AR D
REBRRER L AR B8TE )8
#15,000,00078 7T © AIZBE LERK
RAZ FEUSARERHLAE ©

RERBZBEREAREZAH
FEFT28H A - MAER AR
NERIBTZRBARE - IR
HERETERREZTEE -

W ehETHRBHERAG - MER
BHTRENZE2BRERHE
ATER T _FHE 2B

BAREEBE) -

BEREZTEERESSETE -
BEARAERTIIMmER 28SE
(VAR BB 112 2 A B i
BRAZBTE - KRR B
DREEREEHIAEARZH
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31.

124

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Share option scheme adopted in 2012

As the 2002 Scheme expired on 30 May 2012, the Company
adopted a new share option scheme (the “2012 Scheme”).
Eligible participants of the 2012 Scheme include the
Company’s directors (whether executive or non-executive
and whether independent or not), other employees of the
Group, consultants or advisers of the Group, suppliers of
goods or services to the Group, customers of the Group,
the Company’s shareholders, and any other person, at the
sole discretion of the directors. The 2012 Scheme became
effective on 19 November 2012 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the 2012 Scheme
is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the 2012 Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

Share options granted to a director or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive directors. In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in
excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
10 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The
exercise period of the share options granted is determinable
by the directors, and commences after certain vesting period
and ends on a date which is not later than 10 years from the
date of offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
2012 Scheme, whichever is earlier.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

31. BREE(E)

(b)

R-E——ERHN 2 BRETE
AR _EE_FiER =2 —=
FRA=ZTHER ' WARAE
R —EHIBERETE (=
——FHE]) —FT——F5tE
ZRBRLEEREARAARES
(TRMITHIER TR T RBL
HE) AEBEHMES - A&
BN EAAL  IAEEMH
JEEGBRB ZHER  AEE
BE  ARBREREEAEAMA
T(HEZ2HBBERT) =
——FHERE——F+—A
TABER - U BIERBITEE
fHe1ER] - DAIGHEIBRZ B
SHTERTIRBE -

BIEZZT——F58  BREEH
ERH 2 MARITEERESE &
Zu BEEEITHE R AR RME
AR E TG 210% - RE
f+—@EAHHE BE_ZF—=—
FHEMSEER2HBEREZ
BRE]ETZIRNDEBE &ZMh
ARARMEMERZEBETRG Z
1% o EfE— TR N BARE
EREAFRRERNEEREAS it
A o

BTIARAESFREBZBRRKRE
FEABBEALT ZBREESE
MEBBILIFATESAE - It
SN IMERI A+ — (8 A R R T
ARREEBRRKBILIFATE
SARFEMBEA L 2 ETME
REBBARRNEMERZE
BITRH 20.1% » sk A AER
Bz eE(REBEARBRNNE
EREELANZERTE)BR
5,000,000/ 7T » BIZEEEERR
A& LEISARHALE

RERHZBEREATREZEZ A
FEHI0H RS - MERAREX
NERIBTZREBANRE -
BHBEREZITENHESSE
E o YARETHEBHRKAL M
[EimB I RERIEZEEER
HEsdt+F—T——_F5tElz
B (ARFERE) -



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B S o5 B (4]
Year ended 31 December 2012 HE—F——F+=-A=+—RHIFE

31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED)
(b) Share option scheme adopted in 2012 (continued)

The exercise price of share options is determinable by
the directors, but may be at least highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date
of offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

No share option of the Company was outstanding, granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year and
subsequent to the end of the reporting period under the
2012 Scheme.

32. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 22 May 2008, the Company adopted a restricted share
award scheme (the “Award Scheme”) under which shares of the
Company (the “Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to selected
employees (including directors) of any members of the Group
(the “Selected Employees”) in accordance with the provisions of
the Award Scheme and an irrevocable trust (the “Trust”) was also
established by the Company for the purpose of the Award Scheme.
The Award Scheme became effective on the adoption date and,
unless otherwise terminated or amended, will remain in force for
10 years from that date. Further details of the Award Scheme are
also set out in a circular of the Company dated 29 April 2008.

The aggregate number of Awarded Shares currently permitted to
be awarded under the Award Scheme throughout the duration of
the Award Scheme is limited to 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company from time to time. Subject to the aforesaid limit,
the maximum number of Awarded Shares which may be awarded
under the Award Scheme shall not exceed 2% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the year end date of the preceding
financial year of the Company for any 12-month period up to and
including the date of the relevant grant. The maximum number of
Awarded Shares which may be awarded to a Selected Employee
under the Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the year end date of the preceding
financial year of the Company.

31.

32.
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32. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

126

Pursuant to the rules governing the operation of the Award
Scheme (the “Scheme Rules”), the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) shall select the Selected Employees and
determine the number of Awarded Shares to be awarded. The
Board shall cause to pay the trustee of the Trust (the “Trustee”)
the purchase price and the related expenses from the Company’s
resources for the shares of the Company to be purchased by the
Trustee. The Trustee is a third party appointed by the Board for the
administration of the Award Scheme. The Trustee shall purchase
from the market such number of shares of the Company awarded
as specified by the Board and shall hold such shares until they are
vested in accordance with the Scheme Rules.

When a Selected Employee has satisfied all vesting conditions,
which might include service and/or performance conditions,
specified by the Board at the time of making the award and
become entitled to the shares of the Company forming the
subject of the award, the Trustee shall transfer the relevant
vested Awarded Shares to that employee at no cost. The Selected
Employee however is not entitled to receive any income or
distribution, such as dividend derived from the unvested Awarded
Shares allocated to him/her. The said income or distributions
shall be used by the Trustee for payment of the Trustee’s fees or
expenses or for purchase of further shares of the Company for the
Award Scheme.

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of any
shares of the Company held under the Trust, including, inter alia,
the Awarded Shares and further shares of the Company acquired
out of the income derived therefrom.

The fair value of the Awarded Shares awarded was based on the
market value of the Company’s shares at the grant date and the
Group recognised an equity-settled share-based payment expense
of HK$633,000 for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011:
HK$1,057,000).
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32. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED) 32. ARFIRMG EBETE (&)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, 936,000 Awarded
Shares (2011: 1,246,000 Awarded Shares) were vested and
transferred to certain executive directors of the Company and
certain employees of the Group. During the year ended 31
December 2012, upon the vesting of certain Awards Shares, the
carrying value of the shares held under the restricted share award
scheme account of the Company was reduced by HK$958,000
(2011: HK$1,229,000) and such amount was transferred to the
share-based payment reserve of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Trustee acquired
for the Award Scheme 806,000 ordinary shares of the Company
through purchases on the open market at a total cost (including
related transaction costs) of approximately HK$1,372,000 (2011:
Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2011, 250,000 and 440,000
Awarded Shares were awarded to an executive director and certain
employees of the Group, respectively, which will be transferred
to the executive director and the employees at nil consideration,
subject to the satisfaction of certain service and performance
conditions, upon vesting in various tranches, with the last tranches
ending on 31 December 2015, 30 April 2016 and 30 September
2016, respectively.

The following Awarded Shares were awarded and outstanding
under the Award Scheme during the year:

REBEE_ZT——F+_A=+—HIHF
B ARaBETHTESRAEEET
& B JE 57 B I B2 :%2936,000 8% 228 ik 15
—Z——4 : ] 2460008 EEEIA D)
REBEE_Z——F+_A=+—HIHF
B ATRERNDERBEZ  RAQF
BRHIRR D REN T EIRR B T /B 2k H
BREE )R 4 958,000/8 T( — T ——4 :
1,229,000/870) * Z&BMEEBEEARD
AR R o

REBEE_Z——F+_A=+—HIHF
B ZEARBREFEEBELR
Mi5IR#)1,372,0008 7T (— 82— —4F :
T)RERA(BREBEBEZZKA) EA
806,0000& A" A Al AL ©

RBE-_T——F+-_A=1+—HLF
B AEE-R2RTEERETEED
P E 1 250,000 % £ 440,000 22 A
0 RERD BATREERETZHT
EXREE - XWHFERRRERE RER
BiFrROHERE KB HHRIN =
BE—AF+-_HA=1+—08 ZF—AF
MA=1TBEER-ZF—R"FAA=THE
E o

FR - REBREFEE R B RHARITRE
Z BRI

2012 2011
—E-—F —T——F
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
fair value at unvested fair value at unvested
grant date Awarded grant date Awarded
per share Shares per share Shares
PR B B B
R ke PN Bz AEB
FHLEE RBROHE TARTHE RERHEE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January R—A—H 0.91 3,406,000 0.77 5,040,000
Awarded during the year ~ FRIR T - - 1.39 690,000
Vested during the year FREEB 0.81 (936,000) 0.76 (1,246,000)
Forfeited during the year ~ ERAE K 1.1 (436,000) 0.75 (1,078,000)
At 31 December Rt+=-—A=1+—H 0.91 2,034,000 0.91 3,406,000
R RSB AR A A —E— _FFER
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32. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

33.

128

Out of the total of 6,960,000 Award Shares awarded in prior
years, 2,250,000 Awarded Shares were awarded to the executive
directors of the Company.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 2,034,000 Awarded Shares unvested under the Award
Scheme, which represented approximately 0.8% of the Company’s
ordinary shares in issue at that date.

RESERVES

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 46 to
47 of the financial statements.

The Group’s contributed surplus originally represented the
excess of the aggregate net asset value of the subsidiaries
acquired at the date of their acquisition pursuant to the
Group reorganisation on 29 April 1998, over the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations for
wholly-foreign-owned enterprises, a portion of the profits of
the Group’s subsidiaries, which are established in the PRC,
has been transferred to reserve funds which are restricted as
to use. The subsidiaries are not required to effect any further
transfer when the amount of the reserve funds reaches 50%
of their registered capital.

The Group’s goodwill reserve represents goodwill which
arose on the acquisition of certain subsidiaries in prior years
and remains eliminated against consolidated reserves, as
further explained in note 16 to the financial statements.
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33. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

33. fa#feE(4)

Company (b) ZA&AQF
Shares held
under the
Share Share-hased restricted
premium ~ Contributed payment Retained ~ share award
account surplus reserve profits scheme Total
REARH
R RAREE
ROEER  AARB BE  RERN  BEzRR &3
Notes HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iR Thr Th ThT Th Th ThT
At 1 January 2011 R=E——%-F-A 38493 146,986 2,376 406 (6,405) 182,356
Loss for the year rEERE - - - 2) - 2)
Repurchase of shares BERG 30(a) - (10,870) - - - (10870)
Vesting of shares held under the BRHIRA REREET
restricted share award scheme RO%E kY - - (1229) = 1229 =
Share award arrangements R RBTH kY = = 1,057 = = 1,057
Final 2010 dividend declared EE-E-ZERNRE - 193 - _ - 19
Interim 2011 dividend “T—EhERE 12 - (14,644) - - - (14,644)
Proposed final 2011 dividend HR=5——FR8RE 12 - (16,895) - - - (16,895)
At 31 December 2011 and RE——&
at 1 January 2012 +ZA=t-Bk
RZE——4%-f-H 38493 104,770 2,704 404 (5,176) 141,195
Profit for the year REEREN = - - 2 - 2
Repurchase of shares BERA 30(b) - (1,190) - = - (1,190)
Purchase of shares held under the ~ EEREER SIRG
restricted share award scheme RERTEFARD L - - - - (1372) (1372)
Vesting of shares held under the BRAHIRA BRI AT
restricted share award scheme Kin&E 32 - - (958) - 958 -
Share award arrangements R REZH R - = 633 - = 633
Final 2011 dividend declared ER-E——ERHKS - 2 - - = 27
Interim 2012 dividend “2-—EhgRE 12 - (14,483) - - - (14,483)
Proposed final and specil HR=3-—£X8k
2012 dividends AIRE 12 = (21,666) = = - (21,666)
At31 December 2012 WZE-2%
+-A=1-H 38493 67458 23719 431 (5,590) 103,171
The Company’s contributed surplus originally represented KRB ZBARBRERER
the excess of the aggregate net asset value of the —AWANFHRAZ+hBZE
subsidiaries acquired at the date of their acquisition BH EURESHERARZH
pursuant to the Group reorganisation on 29 April 1998, H ZEMBARIZBEEFAE
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in BHEARRBERBRRMETT
exchange therefor. f&fn 2 E1E °
Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, a company may B—hAN—FEREQNTE A
make distributions to its members out of the contributed BN ETEBER TR LA ARERRA
surplus in certain circumstances. REREH DR ©
M RREERR AT T —EER
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34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

34. KEHERH

(@) As lessor (a) fEARAHMEA
The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) under AREBRBEKESHECHHEER
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for BEYE(KF15) @ ZE2HE
terms ranging from one to two years. The terms of the leases NE—ZEMEFLE - HEBKR—
generally also require the tenants to pay security deposits MEKFAPIMREBILS » WAE
and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the BIEE IR E AR -
then prevailing market conditions.
At 31 December 2012, the Group had total future minimum RZE——F+=-_A=+—8 -
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases ANEBREBEHEAEBAELEZZIN T
with its tenants falling due as follows: HiREmz TR BES ZHEMm
RBERBER EHESREWT :
Group
AEH
2012 2011
=F-=F —F—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FATT
Within one year —F R 1,829 1,683
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE_EZFLF(BREEEMRE) 1,181 343
3,010 2,026
(b) As lessee (b) {EREBA
The Group leases certain of its office properties under AEERBEEEHELHRAER
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are BETHAENE - ZEMHEFZE
negotiated for terms ranging from one to two years (2011: EZHEMNTFT—EMEFE(ZE
one to three years). — & —E=F)-
At 31 December 2012, the Group had total future minimum RZE—Z—F+ZH=+—8"
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases A& ERFER T 5 HR &R 2 T
falling due as follows: ARG EHEMN BRERN 2
HEHESRENT :
Group
REE
2012 2011
—E-—F —F—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Within one year — &R 5,305 6,238
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFERF(BREEMT) 2,196 7,479
7,501 13,717
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35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

36.

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

(a)

(b)

Guarantees were given to certain banks by the Company
for performance bonds/guarantees issued by the banks
in relation to certain contracts undertaken by the Group
amounting to HK$19,050,000 (2011: HK$16,360,000),
of which HK$3,191,000 (2011: HK$259,000) had been
utilised.

Guarantees were given to a bank by the Company and
certain subsidiaries of the Company in connection with
certain banking facilities granted to a subsidiary amounting
to HK$118,500,000 (2011: HK$106,240,000), none of the
banking facilities were utilised as at 31 December 2012
(2011: HK$22,526,000).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions, arrangements and balances

36.

HAREE
RIBEMRAER - AARRHBERERA
EL BB RARBEWT ¢

(@ ARARERAEBEREZE
TEHMA TRITREBH
19,050,000 T (=& — — 4 :
16,360,000 7T ) < B 41175 &
R - Hr13,191,000/8 (= ZE——
£ : 259,000/ 7T) BB o

(b) ARBRAREETH BRG]
K EBARERAEK
118,500,000/ 7t (=& —— £ :
106,240,000 78 7T ) Z R1TE &
MBTIRHEER  BHEZZT—=
F+-_A=+—H8 T EFHH
FERPFETHRE(ZFT——F
22,526,000 7T ) °

BEALRS

BRIt EM B RREMEAFR RS

detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had THER SRR » REBFERNDHTT N
the following material transactions with related parties during the EREEATRS
year:
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: REBTEEBABZMENAT -
2012 2011
—E-—F —F——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Short term employee benefits MHEERA 10,867 9,575
Equity-settled share-based payment expense FSAEE 45 & LA RS D A~ 5K 2 282 415
Post-employment benefits BER 2 1R A 83 98
Total compensation paid to key management YTNFEEEBAEZ
personnel & 1aE 11,232 10,088
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to BEEME 2 E—PHBEHNI B mEKM
the financial statements. 78 e
R R GEEERA T —EER
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

132

—FE+-fA=+—HItFEE

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

37. BB IAEZDE

SHNFBTARNREHREEH 2K

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: HESFENAT -
2012 Group —E——F EHE
Financial assets BKEE
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
BRAVELERAR
ZHKEE
Designated Available-
as such for-sale
upon initial Held for Loans and financial
recognition trading receivables asset Total
RS HRR ERk AHHE
EEfEzh% HEEE EWE MKEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THRT TEr TER THET
Available-for-sale investment AHEHERE - - - 2,100 2,100
Trade and bills receivables EWE SR
A ES - - 27,263 - 27,263
Deposits and other receivables Rkt R - - 4,122 - 4,122
Financial assets at fair value BEATEEEZARZ
through profit or loss BIEE 11,109 14,933 - - 26,042
Pledged bank deposits BERRITER - - 60,097 - 60,097
Cash and cash equivalents BehERBEEEE - - 274,806 - 274,806
11,109 14,933 366,288 2,100 394,430
Financial liabilities ke E
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
BARSIRZ
BEaE
HK$’000
FTET
Trade payables FEIST B SRR 33,037
Other payables HAb e FRIR 24,191
Financial liabilities included in accruals S AJEEtRIEZ B AaE 2,654
59,882
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (CONTINUED) 37. B IEZ2DE(E)
2011 Group —ET——F REE
Financial assets BgEE

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

BN EEERAR
ZIGEE

Designated Available-

as such for-sale

upon initial Held for Loans and financial
recognition trading  receivables asset Total

R TR Bk AEHE
EEFEZRE HEEE FEWFRIE M EE #at

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR

Available-for-sale investment AEHERE - - - 2,000 2,000
Trade and bills receivables MR E SRR
[ E TS - - 67,615 - 67,615
Deposits and other receivables TR EA ERIE = - 4,293 - 4,293
Financial assets at fair value BRATELEZAE L
through profit or loss BISEE 3,187 20,100 - - 23,287
Derivative financial assets PTHERTISEE - 91 = = 91
Pledged bank deposits BERRITER - - 31,774 - 31,774
Cash and cash equivalents RehERBASEE = = 311,837 - 311,837
3,187 20,191 415,519 2,000 440,897
Financial liabilities g 3=R
Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through profit Financial
or loss — liabilities at
held for trading amortised cost Total
BATEL A% S
B AR ARSIRZ
BE-RKEEE Bsaf st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FHIT FAT
Trade payables e E SRR - 52,555 52,555
Other payables H b fE S 20IE - 23,276 23,276
Financial liabilities included in accruals A RIBE HERE = 13,207 13,207
Derivative financial liabilities MTETBAE 221 = 221
Interest-bearing bank borrowings B BIRITEE - 22,526 22,526
221 111,564 111,785
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37.

38.

134

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (CONTINUED)

37. BT RZ2D¥(&)

Financial assets MKEE
Company
KA E
Loans and receivables
BERREWRRIE
2012 2011
—F-=F —F—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#R TR
Cash and cash equivalents ReLERBEEE 1,651 4,116
Financial liabilities Bigas
Company
KA FE]
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
DS A Rz B A S
2012 2011
—E--F —T——%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Accruals FEFRIB 337 266

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of
the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets and liabilities
approximated to their fair values.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank
deposits, trade and bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables, trade payables, financial liabilities included in accruals
and interest-bearing bank borrowings approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (CONTINUED) 38. AR ERAVESHREREE)
The fair values of listed equity and debt investments are based on EREREKRE 2 AFETIETS
quoted market prices. HMESFH -

The fair value of the available-for-sale investment is based on AHEBERE Z A ETVIZTSEIREG

available market prices. H oo

The Group entered into derivative financial instruments with a AREBHEERT 7o MMEEBI N ITE

creditworthy financial institution. Derivative financial instruments, BT A - STEMBE I EERIAINE

including forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps, were BHRFEEE - THIRAERBEER

measured using valuation techniques similar to forward pricing HHEX B 2 HERMETE - AR

and swap models, using present value calculations. The models Bt - ZEBEAMAZERNR ZTE

incorporated various market observable inputs including the credit SR AZSE  BEXSHAEZEE

quality of counterparty, foreign exchange spot and forward rates B 2= - SNE BN HARN R HAE = K FI R dh 47

and interest rate curves. °

The carrying amounts of forward currency contracts and interest R HSNEE S 4 R R 4 B 2 AR TED (B R R

rate swaps were the same as their fair values. £ 7 N HEMER -

Fair value hierarchy AFEEREE

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and ANEBHANTNERREET RIFER

disclosing the fair values of financial instruments: BTRZAFE:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices (unadjusted) F1E : IRHEREESBEN RS
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities ZARERABRREFECRATE

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques F2E : UHESATFEEEETE
for which all inputs which have a significant effect on 2B ASIEY A HE s EEE
the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or R7(EEFATEZ AEE
indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for F3E : NEEEATFEEEETE
which any inputs which have a significant effect on the ZHEABEBHIETEERAE
recorded fair value are not based on observable market g (WIEE R S AEE)
data (unobservable inputs) ZIHERETEZ AT E

R R mEEFRA —E—CFER 135
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (CONTINUED)  38.

136

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets measured at fair value:
Group

As at 31 December 2012

AFERAFESRERE(H)
AT BEREH )
BRAT(EHE2HE

A%

R-F——F+-A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1E E2[E EIE FoEy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHIT FHIT FHT
Available-for-sale investment: AEHERE
Club membership debenture SHeEES = 2,100 = 2,100
Financial assets at fair value BAFECEZARZ
through profit or loss: BIEEE
Held-for-trading FHIEEE 14,933 - - 14,933
Designated as financial assets at BEREATELER
fair value through profit or loss NEZ S EE 11,109 = = 11,109
26,042 2100 - 28,142
As at 31 December 2011 RZFE——F+=—HA=1—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1E E2[E EIE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHIT FHIT FHL
Available-for-sale investment: AEHERE ¢
Club membership debenture SHeEES - 2,000 = 2,000
Financial assets at fair value BAFECEZARZ
through profit or loss: BIEEE
Held-for-trading FHIEEE 20,100 - - 20,100
Designated as financial assets at EBEREATELER
fair value through profit or loss AR Z TS EE 3,187 = = 3,187
Derivative financial assets THETBEE - 91 - 91
03,087 2,001 - 25378

The Company did not have any financial assets measured at fair

value as at 31 December 2012 and 2011.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into

or out of Level 3 (2011: Nil).
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38.

39.

——F+ZA=+—HILFE

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (CONTINUED) 38. AR ERAVESHREREE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AEEEHREE(E)
Liabilities measured at fair value: B FEGEZEE -
Group AEH
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair REBR-_ZT——F+_A=+—B1
value as at 31 December 2012. EEMREATEFECHBAE -
As at 31 December 2011 —EF——FF_A=1—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1E HE2ME E3IE Fohyy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T BT FHExT
Derivative financial liabilities TTEBTREE = 221 - 221
The Company did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair KRR T —FR-_ZE—F+=
value as at 31 December 2012 and 2011. A=+—HIE&FMEAFEFEZY
HafmE -
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39. BiEMEERERBE

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as trade and bills receivables, deposits and other receivables,
trade and other payables, financial liabilities included in accruals,
derivative financial instruments, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, and an available-for-sale investment, which
mainly arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, equity price
risk, debenture price risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below. The Group’s accounting policies in
relation to derivative financial instruments are set out in note 2.4 to
the financial statements.

P

AEBz T EVBTABREDEMRTT
FHRARBRERERBASEE - EY
BTAZTFERZIRAEEZ ZHRE
B - AEBREMEBRMBEERA
B MEKRESERRERER 2

K EMEWRIE - BN E B R A
FENS IR ~ St ABRTRIBZMBAE
TEMBIE  RAFELESEARZ
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39. BiiEEEEZERBEEK(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk I 2= 2 i
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest ZNEE B A FE T 5 M| R B i Ao 2 B B
rates relates primarily to the Group’s cash at banks and time DEAREFFRNBITIERZEHF =X
deposits with floating interest rates. FEZERERERGFERER -
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably TRIHNEFFEHMB KB IETE 215
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held AT REEZBRBRBETHEA (B B2 E
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on MRBITEB N ERFRNITE) Y
floating rate bank balances and time deposits). FIREIB O] RE H IR & H) v URGEE -
Group
rEE
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
basis points hefore tax

Eghigh, BRBE AT 2
OR4) i/ (RD)

HK$'000
BT
2012 e
Hong Kong dollar BT (25) (136)
United States dollar =TT (25) (80)
RMB AR (25) (617)
Hong Kong dollar BT 25 136
United States dollar =T 25 80
RMB AR 25 617
2011 —E——%F
Hong Kong dollar BIT (25) (146)
United States dollar =TT (25) (94)
RMB AR (25) (553)
Hong Kong dollar BT 25 146
United States dollar x0T 25 94
RMB AR 25 553
There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained BRIRB ARG - HAREE A &R
earnings. TE o
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39. BiiEMEREBZERBER(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
mainly arise from revenue generated and/or costs and expenses
incurred by operating units in currencies other than the units’
functional currencies. The Group also used forward currency

SN LB

$El*ﬁ_5¢%tﬁ’3 = B R

o Jth R

ZRENE iﬁh@ﬁﬁﬁhﬁhﬂ]ﬁ%%ﬁ

AINE

TEEFTIRER 2 WA RS EE A 2 BK

ARFAX - AEBBBRITEMINES

contracts to hedge its foreign currency risk arising from interest- RS R ETTEE 25 ERITIEES W
bearing bank borrowings denominated in the United States dollars. RINE RS - BETRZTIEEUEZTR

Certain transactions were predominately in the United States dollar

and RMB.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the United
States dollar and RMB exchange rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the

fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

AR¥EDI(E -

TR ERBRMBERITTE S

TN REER HEHE

RERZBRB

AT ﬁzéﬁfz&aﬁﬂﬁ@ﬁm

Zﬁlﬁ&ﬁfﬁ c

ATRAT L B2

Group
REH
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
exchange rate before tax
EREH BRE AR
(%) #m, CE)
% HK$'000
FA&T
2012 —E-—_—F
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against the BT ETRE
United States dollar 5 1,101
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB ST 7 AR (B 5 3,405
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against the BT HEITHE
United States dollar (5) (1,101)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB 78 7T AR EFE (5) (3,405)
2011 —EF——F
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against the W8T =TTz E
United States dollar 5 1,337
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB fin 75 T H AR BB 5 3,269
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against the W8T R ETIHE
United States dollar (5) (1,337)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB BT AREHE (5) (3,269)
There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained BRIRB AR - HAREE I AR A
earnings. & o
Mg RGEEERA ZTE - FFR
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39. BiiEEEEZERBEEK(E)
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POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk

The Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised
and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that most
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are to a certain
extent subject to certain credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
listed debt investments, an available-for-sale investment, and
deposits and other receivables, mainly arises from default of the
counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments. The Company is also exposed
to credit risk through the granting of financial guarantees,
further details of which are disclosed in note 35 to the financial
statements.

Since the Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised
and creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentration of credit risk as 16.0% (2011: 8.8%) of the total
trade and bills receivables of the Group were due from certain
departments/units of the Government of the HKSAR, the Group’s
largest customer. Save as the above, there were no significant
concentrations of credit risk at the end of the reporting period.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables are disclosed in
note 21 to the financial statements.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and
the value of individual securities. The Group was exposed to equity
price risk arising from individual equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (note 24) as at
31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011. The Group’s listed
equity investments are listed on the Stock Exchange and are
valued at quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39. BiiEEEEEERBE(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Equity price risk (continued) e NELIFEEAE Y
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10% TREHNEMEEMERBEZTIE 2T
change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all other SN RAREHEM IS 2R - AERRTE
variables held constant and before any impact on tax, based on BAEE RAKERNREHEFEEH
their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period. Z AT EFEEI0O% - HEEE 2%
Carrying Increase/
amount (decrease)
of equity in profit
investments before tax
BAEBREZ BRBL AR R
BREE & CRD)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
2012 g%
Investments listed in Hong Kong: ERBLEMZIEE
— Held-for-trading —RIEEE 14,933 1,493
2011 —E——4F
Investments listed in Hong Kong: EEELEMZRE
— Held-for-trading —RBIEEE 20,100 2,010
There is no impact on the Group's equity except on the retained BRAREB BFIGN - 3 7K & B A% AN AE 4 T {r]

earnings. 2 o
Debenture price risk BEHERRR

The Group has a club debenture investment in Hong Kong. The
fair value of the club debenture investment is affected by market
forces and other factors. The Group holds it for non-trading
purposes.

MR G REER AR

AEBRFAETBZGMESFKE - 8/
BFREZATFEXTAREMBRES
& AEEFASMESFLIHFEER

N

T FFR
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39. Bi¥EEEEZERBEEK(E)
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POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to ensure there are adequate funds to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term. In the
management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and bank balances, and time deposits deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Cash flows of the
Group are closely monitored by senior management on an ongoing
basis.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

RBETERE

AEBEZ BRDERERERESIARE
NECHERHZADESTE - B
RBETERE  AREERIERE
BEEGSERREAREZERRRS
KBTS R ERFER - WRERERE
MEBZRBEKR T E - BREEER
BTYERAKEZRERE -

RERFEAZER  NEBREBSAR
FHRNRATE 2 VB A G RIERN
T

Group AEH
2012
—E--F
Less than 3 to less than
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
RERER PRZMEA =ETZERR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL FERT FEx
Trade payables [ERTE ZER 29,727 3,020 290 33,037
Other payables HiEMTIE - 24,191 - 24,191
Financial liabilities included in AR AR
accruals - 2,654 - 2,654
Guarantees given to banks for RAEBEAEZ ETAHEL
performance bonds/guarantees  BAVRE /ERMMBRT
issued in relation to certain et IR
contracts undertaken by the Group 3,191 - - 3,191
32,918 29,865 290 63,073
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

39. BEREEBEFERBEKGR)

Liquidity risk REBESRER
Group NEE
2011
2
Less than 3to less than
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
RERER PR=EA ZE+-fEAR R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT TAT
Trade payables ER B S8R 50,743 1,569 243 52,555
Other payables HifENTIE - 23,276 - 23,276
Financial liabilities included in A ZIE S AE
accruals - 13,207 - 13,207
Derivative financial liabilities TENKEE - - 221 221
Interest-bearing bank borrowings* Bt 8 $R/T(E & 22,526 - - 22,526
Guarantees given to banks for RAEBAEZ ETANEL
performance bonds/guarantees  EAJRE /ERMFRT
issued in relation to certain REZER
contracts undertaken by the Group 259 - - 259
73,528 38,052 464 112,044

As at 31 December 2011, interest-bearing bank borrowings in the amount of
HK$22,526,000 contained a repayment on-demand clause giving the bank
the unconditional right to call the loan at any time and, therefore, for the
purpose of the above maturity profile, the total amount was classified as “on
demand”.

Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors did not believe that
the borrowings would be called in their entirety within 12 months,
and they considered that the loans would be repaid in accordance
with the maturity dates as set out in the loan agreements. This
evaluation had been made considering the financial position of the
Group at the date of approval of the financial statements and the
lack of events of default.

In accordance with the terms of the borrowings, the contractual
undiscounted payments of HK$22,663,000 at 31 December 2011
were repayable within one year.

RHEE

* BE_Z——F+-A=+—8 " fERT
fE B2 #822,526,000/8 7T 8 & R1TA HEM
RERBERS ZSREEERZ G - Bt Bt
IR S - AESRRIREREE]

REBLINEFET EFTHEZRSE
BEHER T ZEARNEERBEE
2 BRERABERIRBETM S
HEHAERE - AT BT EAEE
RIS R R LE B 8 2 BF B & 3 4
BEENEMS -

=t+—H8" &1 ﬁffi%ﬁfﬁHmZZ 663,000
BILAR—FAEE
EREEARA T FER
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39.

144

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39. BiEREEBEEZREEK(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, is as follows:

RBES R (E)

RMEBHEER - AAAIREEHR
IR RArETE 2 B B E S BB R a0
™

Company N
2012
—E—_F
Less than
On demand 3 months Total
REREE DPR=MEA st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
Other payables and accruals E b RIA K
FEETHIR - 337 337
Guarantees given to banks for RAEBEFEREZET
performance bonds/guarantees BAELEY
issued in relation to certain contracts  {RZ& /HE(R T[]
undertaken by the Group ERITHRME 2 R 3,191 - 3,191
3,191 337 3,528
2011
—E——%
Less than
On demand 3 months Total
RERER DR =16 A w5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T FAIT
Other payables and accruals HiENFRIER
e IR - 266 266
Guarantees given to banks for MAREAE2ET
performance bonds/guarantees BHEHELN
issued in relation to certain contracts R (R M E
undertaken by the Group IRITIREE Z IR 259 = 259
Guarantees given to a bank in m—EREBARZ
connection with interest-bearing M BRI TEE
bank borrowings to a subsidiary m—RERTTIRE 2
ER 22,526 - 22,526
22,785 266 23,051
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39.

40.

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 December 2012 and 2011.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholders’
equity.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial statements,
due to the adoption of revised HKFRSs during the current year,
the accounting treatment and presentation of certain items
and balances in the financial statements have been revised to
comply with the new requirements. Accordingly, certain prior year
adjustments have been made, certain comparative amounts have
been reclassified and restated to conform with the current year's
presentation and accounting treatment, and a third statement of
financial position as at 1 January 2011 has been presented.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 18 March 2013.

39.

40.

41.

MR G REER AR

MR EREE B R RBUR ()

EXEE
AEBEAEENEEBRARER
EEFECENEE NI EFBENER
LR U RFEEBRRARREBREA
88 -

RNEBBER LT 2 B8 LA E E
ZEBEE  EHEMREEAANGERE
RAEH AR - REEA BB AERE
RIREMRE - MR EE AN REIT
FIRARE R AL AREE - ZEBL
EAERINE N EXRREBBEES ©
BE-_ZT——Fk=Z—F+=A8
= +—HIEFEAR  AEBZERER
BiZ - BURSIE I e o

AEBE 2 ERARPTARRERD#B DA
B o

LBy F

MANEA T AR 2. 2P R - AR AR
ERANEREAEETRAR B REE
8 SFTEREINERMERRAESE T
HE R#EHZ 25 TMERERT - A
MEMTHRE - Bt - UBIFEEED
ETHE ETHREFHCENSE
REY| > UHEAFREZ2IHARE
FRENE WEEHN T ——F—
A—RAZE=DPBIRREK -
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Particulars of Properties

EES

31 December 2012 —F—=—F+=-A=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REWE
Attributable
interest of
Use Tenure the Group
REEEG
Location ih B A& FH EREI
1. Units 1, 2 and 3 on 11th Floor BB Industrial Long term 100%
Westlands Centre 8 F0% T%H lease
No. 20 Westlands Road R B 2055 REIFEE
Quarry Bay FERFH
Hong Kong 1111 - 2R3=
2. Unit No. Al on Level 21 FREARIMBE([FE]) Commercial Longterm 100%
Golden Eagle International Plaza TERE EE: lease
No. 89 Hanzhong Road AR REIEE
Jianye District EZHE
Nanjing E R ER8I5R
Jiangsu Province & BPR R 4k
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) 211BALE
3. Unit No. 2601 on Level 26 Fh Commercial  Medium term 100%
South Tower ERE EESE lease
Guangzhou World Trade Centre Complex &N REEE

146

Nos. 371-375 Huanshi East Road B

Dongshan District
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
PRC
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Five Year Financial Summary

L FEMBEHBE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the published audited financial statements and reclassified/restated as
appropriate, is set out below. The amounts for each year in the five year
financial summary have been adjusted for the effects of the retrospective
changes in the accounting policy affecting deferred tax on investment
properties, as detailed in note 2.2 to the financial statements. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

UTRAEEBER AT BFE 2 KEANE
E - BELIHEHIERE 2 HE - TiREEE
TE KBV BRER  XCEEHMEHD
B8 o MANB MR T2 2F75F L - B
FUBHMERFZSBOUFERBEMREL
MIAZ @FTBR EPRETEFLAE - It
RS MEREESMEHRRET D -

RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t-HLEFE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
“B--f CZE-—% CZE-ZF ZCZETNFE CZET)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL FEr FEL FEr
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E31) (&31) (&51) (5751)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEREEK
REVENUE WA 206,708 391,209 338,851 400,012 376,386
Cost of sales and services SEE MRFAR (113,118) (284,194) (225,741) (280,372) (261,894)
Gross profit e 93,590 107,015 113,110 119,640 114,492
Other income and gains, net HA R 558 9,550 24,262 8,152 2,823 14,689
Fair value gains/(losses), net: NEENES/(F1R)FE
Financial assets at fair value BAFELSBRARL
through profit or loss MBAE 6,262 (5,858) 615 4,072 (5,406)
Derivative financial instruments — TEFBTE-TRER
transactions not qualifying as hedges ~ {E¥fm 7% 5 130 72 (202) - -
Investment properties REME 16,610 9,068 7,440 2,336 (1,146)
Selling and distribution expenses HERD Y (30,306) (33,097) (31,797) (33,069) (34,069)
General and administrative expenses ~ —#& RATHE X (44,634) (44,424) (41,572) (45,711) (48,731)
Finance costs BRER (100) (545) (39) - -
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM HREEEBL
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BB A 51,102 56,493 55,707 50,791 39,829
Income tax expense HiESeila5a (4,100) (5,517) (5,554) (5,815) (5,225)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM SEITEES Y
CONTINUING OPERATIONS AEFGF 47,002 50,976 50,153 44,976 34,604
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRILEEEK
Loss for the year from AEEZREEELE
a discontinued operation metk s BE - - - - (2,118)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR KEERT 47,002 50,976 50,153 44976 32,486
Attributable to: THALER
Owner of the parent [SYNEILZZ=PN 41,002 50,976 50,153 44,973 33,014
Non-controlling interests Eigullug ey - - - 3 (528)
47,002 50,976 50,153 44,976 32,486
Bl Z BB R A A —E - FER



Five Year Financial Summary (continued)

T FEMBEME(E)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS BE - BERFEHMES
As at 31 December
W+=B=1+—H
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—E--f —T—F —ZT-TF —TTHNF —TT)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET TEr FET FET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&5 (E31) (&51) (E51)
TOTAL ASSETS BERE 494,079 524,018 515,582 459,900 427 505
TOTAL LIABILITIES BELE (93,834) (137,860) (143,248) (107,358) (91,342)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS JEEm - - - - 753

400,245 386,158 372,334 352,542 336,916
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